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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
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Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Huen Po Wah (resigned on 1 December 2016)
Ms. Zeng Zhi (appointed on 1 December 2016)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven
Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Mallesons Stephen Jaques
Leung & Lau, Solicitors

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AT EH

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Service (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Strategic Financial Relations Limited
2401-02

Admiralty Centre |

18 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

CONTACTS

Telephone: (852) 2953 0383
Facsimile: (852) 2953 1523
Website: www.suga.com.hk
Stock code: 912
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MERE

OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)

Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share
(HK cents)

Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share
(HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Total equity

Net current assets

Net cash

Capital expenditure

Net assets value per share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Current ratio

Debt to equity ratio
Inventory turnover days
Debtors turnover days
Return on average equity
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2017
HK$000

—F—tF
THET

1,414,103
223,600
61,672
61,745
22.12

7.0

8.0

670,472
302,025
108,852
61,103
238.6

1.84
17.2%
56

51
9.2%

2016
HK$'000
TN
TAT

1,368,100
200,819
88,654
80,038
28.94

7.0

8.0

667,331
309,273
112,898
40,989
240.8

2.03
16.8%
56

48
12.2%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—80LEE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF
FETT FE T
The United States of America EH 625,647 554,206
Japan SN 253,955 277,427
PRC (including Hong Kong) TE(PESRS) 166,580 149,832
United Kingdom HEH 94,899 168,466
Taiwan =D 79,858 40,989
Australia M 70,708 79,184
Germany 1= 34,535 45,090
Others H it 87,921 52,906
Total &=t 1,414,103 1,368,100
0,
11.8% 6.1%
5.7% @ THE UNITED STATES TAIWAN
5.0% OF AMERICA &8
-0/ ° AEUSNTIRALIA
2.4% JAPAN Ly
18.0% B GERMANY
6.2% @ rre 1
(INCLUDING . OTHERS
HONG KONG) Hit
hE(BEEE)
@ UNITED KINGDOM
®E
44.2%
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An exceptional 25 years:
Driving to an even greater tomorrow for Suga

1 2002
Established another manufacturing plant in Xixiang. ? 2011
REABELZ—BEERME °

Acquired Happypaws
International Limited
to start pet product
trading business.

W O EB KR EIR
DE) FAREYER

[ ]
B BEERK -

Suga Electronics Limited was
founded in Hong Kong.

FEEFARAITREBKL -

12010

Headquarters office
moved to Suga’s own
premise with 12,900
square feet in Hong Kong.

BEABZPREBER

1 1994
Established the Buji plant.
B E TR e

E3 A M7 D \)
Listed on the main board E;‘\?’QOO:FERHIJQ%

of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0912).
RBEBBBEIRERLD
(B 3 X35 : 0912) ©

2008

Precise Computer Tooling
Company Limited
expanded production
capacity by setting up a
second factory building.
BIEMEERARARR
VE_ETIRARE  Eit
hnRAEERE D ©

2004

Acquired Precise Computer Tooling
Company Limited in Huizhou.
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For 25 years, as part of its commitment to better product
quality and higher reliability, Suga has adapted to fast-
changing technologies and market trends. The trust it has
earned from long-held customers worldwide has laid a
strong foundation for Suga’s continuous growth and superior
performance. Going forward, Suga will continue to consolidate
its advantages in industry-leading know-how, advanced
manufacturing facilities, R&D capabilities and global networks
to create business synergies and achieve greater success.

2014

Production facilities of Suga
Technology Hong Kong
Limited and Suga Electronics
Limited moved to Suga
High-tech Industrial Park in
Dongguan

12016

Suga placed first in the
“Best Small-Cap” company
(Hong Kong), in “Asia’s
Best Managed Companies
Poll” conducted by
FinanceAsia, the third
consecutive year SUGA was
selected in the winner’s list

Established

SGlI Venture of: this prestigious annual
Company to  award.

develop the (@& M e mER
“PetNfans” (FlnanceAS|a)5§¥)J¥E’J (22 M
social platform. EEEEATR —;—%EJE

%éﬂ%ﬂﬁi*_iﬁ &£
PNHEREIBRE -

A . SGI Venture
Company - B 2
[PetNfans] #t &
=

The plastics
from Huizhou to Suga High-
tech Industrial Park, consolidating
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division moved

operations.
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Launched one-stop
online pet product
sales platform (www.
espetsso.com) to help
facilitate pet product
sales.

HEH-EXPLEYAR
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com) - BB EEYIE @
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Set up .companies

in Beijing, Tianjin

2017
The Group’s own pet food
brand “Brabanconne” has

been officially launched to
market in mainland China
and Hong Kong in March
2017.

2015 Free Trade Zone and

2012 Established Qianhai lz\lansha Free Trade
. Chongmi Investment Zone to capture
aﬁaﬁizcht?ndﬁjzggalsﬁagrﬁ & Consuftatpgn. greater market-share
g (Shenzhen)Co., Ltd to in China, Created

y in Dongguan.
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tap the potential-rich
China pet market.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFRSE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the annual
results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the "Group”) for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 ("FY2016/17").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SUGA recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,414.1 million during
the year under review, representing a year-on-year growth of about
3.4% (FY2015/16: HK$1,368.1
increase in orders for some of the Group’s specialised electronic
products. Gross profit rose by 11.3% to HK$223.6 million (FY2015/16:
15.8%
(FY2015/16: 14.7%). The improved gross profit margin was owed

million) attributable mainly to the

HK$200.8 million) and gross profit margin climbed to

mainly to the increase in orders for products of higher gross profit
margin and the success of the Group in consolidating production
facilities at its High-tech Industrial Park in Dongguan during the year,
which helped enhance overall operational efficiency.

Profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$61.7
million (FY2015/16: HK$80.0 million). Net profit margin was 4.4%
(FY2015/16: 5.9%) and basic earnings per share were HK22.12 cents
(FY2015/16: HK28.94 cents). If excluding other gains in FY2015/16 of
approximately HK$11.3 million from the release of exchange reserve
upon deregistration of a subsidiary’, and the payment of relocation
costs of approximately HK$5.6 million incurred from moving the
Huizhou plant into the High-tech Industrial Park in Dongguan and the
non-cash impairment of the Huizhou factory building of approximately
HK$7.5 million due to change of land use of the Huizhou plant site
during the year under review, profit attributable to shareholders would
be up by 9.0% year-on-year, reflecting the continued growth of the
Group's core businesses.

! During the year ended 31 March 2016, a subsidiary was deregistered. In this
connection, the cumulative amount of the exchange reserve of this subsidiary
of HK$11.3 million, previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, was reclassified to the consolidated income statement

upon the deregistration of this subsidiary.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHE

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have proposed to pay a final dividend of HK8.0 cents
per share (FY2015/16: HK8.0 cents per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company as at
18 August 2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.0 cents
per share declared, total dividend for the year would be HK15.0 cents
per share (FY2015/16: HK15.0 cents per share). Subject to approval by
shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or before 25 August 2017.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Electronic products, the Group’s core business, continued to generate
stable revenue and strong cash flow for the Group during the
review year. In recent years, SUGA has married “Internet of things”
(IoT) technology with its electronic products, and the professional
audio equipment product market responded especially well and that
translated into satisfactory income growth during the year under
review. Our business partners are mainly in professional stage audio
equipment business and their demand for upgraded products has
increased notably. The key markets include the US, UK and Germany.
We hope to embed loT technology in products for more customers
and continue to enhance the functions and quality of our products,
thereby give our income bigger room to grow in the future.

Moreover, SUGA's telephones for hearing-impaired elderly managed
steady growth during the year under review. They boasted a better
gross profit margin, which helped drive growth of the Group’s overall
turnover and gross profit margin. We will cooperate with our business
partner in exploring new functions to add to the products, in order to
enhance the quality of life for the elderly and reinforce SUGA's position
in the specialised product market. In addition, pet training devices, one
of the Group’s core products, also maintained stable growth during
the period.

10 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016/17
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFRSE

Other products continued to develop on steady pace during the
year, with that of the smart card and NFC products and interactive
educational products slightly lagging behind the rest. Smart card
and NFC products sales declined as a result of conclusion of projects
in Europe of some customers during the period. We will continue
to maintain good relationship with these customers so that we can
capture future business opportunities. As for interactive educational
products, as mentioned in our interim report for the financial year,
a customer which was acquired last year by another company and
the new owner decided to focus on the software market, thus the
segment’s performance was still weak during the year under review.
In the future, the Group will remain cautious in the market. The drop
in sales of the above two products was however offset by the growth
in sales of other products, a reflection of the effectiveness of our
strategy of maintaining a diverse product mix that has helped disperse
risks and brace steady growth of our business.

We have been looking for opportunities to diversify our business and
create added value to the Group. While electronic products are SUGA's
cornerstone business, the Group places much importance also on
developing new markets. We have been actively developing business
in the growing pet care market in mainland China and Hong Kong
in recent years and an innovative ecosystem has been created for the
business. During the year under review, the Group made encouraging
progress with the business boasting a number of breakthroughs.
SUGA's own pet food brand “Brabanconne” was granted an import
licence by the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic of China
during the period under review and was officially launched to market
in mainland China and Hong Kong in March 2017 and received good
response. The product has its formula tailored for pets in Asia by a
veterinarian graduated from the University of Cambridge in the UK and
is manufactured in Europe by the Group’s Belgian partner. It meets
the nutritional needs of pets in Asia.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHE

PROSPECTS

In the first half of 2017, the global economy finally saw light at the
end of the tunnel and started on the recovery path. At the same
time, the market continues to keep a close watch on the pace of US
interest rate hikes, and changes of administration in some European
countries add uncertainty to economic development in the second
half year. Nevertheless, SUGA, which is dedicated to serving the
specialised electronic product market, has managed to maintain steady
development, regardless of macroeconomic fluctuation. The Group's
core electronics business has kept generating stable revenue and
strong cash flow for the Group, allowing it to constantly innovate
and improve products building on its well-established foundation,
and also maintain development momentum in the long run. In recent
years, we have endeavoured to empower our major products with
loT technology, cooperating with customers and business partners to
develop new products and upgrade existing products with enhanced
functions, which has helped customers expand their business base and,
at the same time, allows partners to share the fruit of growth with
us and achieve win-win outcomes.

As mentioned, on top of focusing on its core electronics business, the
Group is optimistic about the growth potential of the pet care market
in mainland China and Hong Kong, and is dedicated to developing a
comprehensive pet ecosystem comprising online-to-offline operations.
With a higher gross profit margin than electronic products, the pet
product business is expected to give SUGA a stronger impetus to
grow. The Group’s own pet food brand “Brabanconne” has started
generating revenue since its debut in March 2017. We expect this
product to bring good contribution to the Group’s annual sales in
the financial year of 2017/18. This year, Brabanconne products will be
sold mainly in 11 first-tier cities in mainland China via a sales network
comprising more than 100 physical stores. At the same time, the
products are also available at various popular online stores. The online
plus offline pet products sales network of the Group is gradually taking
shape, giving the Group a strong foundation for development in the
future.

12 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016/17
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFRSE

The Group's self-developed smart pet feeder PETBLE® SmartBowl and
the wearable gauging device PETBLE® SmartTag started taking orders
at the Pet Show held in the first quarter of the year and the market
responded positively. PETBLE® SmartTag can detect activities of a pet
and PETBLE® SmartBowl can record food intake by a pet, allowing
pet owners to closely track the habits of their pets, so as to improve
their pets’ health. Meanwhile, the PETBLE® App, which is capable
of gathering and building big data, can help the Group constantly
improve the quality and functions of its products, and through
analysing the data gathered understand in depth the eating habits
of pets and how they relate to a pet's health, thereby contribute to
the development of scientific research in related fields. The Group's
PETBLE® pet care solution won the “Outstanding Solution/Product
Award” at the Asian Electronics Forum last year, speaking volume
to the industry recognition it enjoys. Mass production of PETBLE®
smart pet products will begin in the coming few years. Furthermore,
the Group's self-developed pet social media apps “Chongmi (88 >K)”
and “PetNfans” have accumulatively over 100,000 and 10,000 users
respectively in mainland China and Hong Kong, which can potentially
be translated into huge consumption demand for pet products.

SUGA's High-tech Industrial Park in Dongguan completed consolidation
of production facilities in July 2016 and has since been in full
operation, boosting the Group’s production capacity markedly. The
Group is applying to change the purpose of the land on which its
former Huizhou plant stood to commercial and residential use. The
slots surrounding the land parcel have already been changed to
commercial and residential lands and development has gone well. We
will consider development plans which promise to generate maximum
value for the Group and its shareholders and will announce the status
of development in due course.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my gratitude to our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their support in the
past year. My heartfelt appreciation also goes to our management
team and every staff member for their relentless hard work. | wish
continuous steady advancement for the Group and prosperity for its
businesses.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CE:AERE AR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded revenue
of HK$1,414.1 million, representing an increase of 3.4% as compared
with HK$1,368.1 million in last year. The increase was resulted from
improvement of sales for some of the Group’s specialised electronic
products.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive
Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the “CODM”) that
make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

During the year, the Executive Directors reviewed the qualitative factors
such as business activities, economic and legal characteristics of the
business and quantitative factors such as the financial performance of
the two segments previously presented, namely electronic products
and moulds and plastic products, and have determined that the
moulds and plastic products business did not qualify as a reportable
or operating segment, as such business contributed to less than 5%
of all of the Group’s financial indicators. During the year ended 31
March 2017, the pet food business contributed to less than 1% of the
Group’s total revenue. As a result, the Group has only one reportable
segment.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2017, revenue generated
from the top 3 countries, the United States of America, Japan and
PRC (including Hong Kong) accounted for 74.0% of the Group’s total
sales (2016: 71.7%).

Profit Attributable to Equity holders of the Company

During the fiscal year, gross profit margin was further improved
from 14.7% to 15.8%. The improvement was the result of success
integration of production facilities of the Group’s High-Tech Industrial
Park in Dongguan, which improved overall operational efficiency and
increased in orders of higher gross profit products. Gross profit for the
year increased 11.3% to HK$223.6 million (2016: HK$200.8 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEEERE AR

Operating profit was HK$61.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$88.7 million). If excluding the other gain in
FY2015/2016 of HK$11.3 million from the release of exchange reserve
upon deregistration of a subsidiary, and the other losses in this year
for the payment of relocation costs of approximately HK$5.6 million
incurred from moving the Huizhou plant into the High-tech Industrial
Park in Dongguan and the non-cash impairment of the Huizhou
factory building of approximately HK$7.5 million upon application of
change of land use of the Huizhou plant site, the profit attributable
to Owners of the Company this year would be more than last year by
HK$6.2 million, reflecting the continued growth of the Group's core
businesses.

Distribution and selling expenses increased HK$13.9 million mainly
due to increase in staff costs, commission paid and the promotion
expenses of the Group’s own pet food brand “Brabanconne” which
was officially launched to market in China and Hong Kong in March
2017. The general and administration expenses increased HK$4.2
million mainly attributable to the increase in depreciation expenses,
employee benefit expenses and research and development costs.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has achieved a
net finance income of HK$3.2 million (2016: HK$0.6 million). The
improvement was due to the increase in interest income received from
bank deposits and customers.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, the Group recorded
profit attributable to Owners of the Company of HK$61.7 million for
FY2016/2017 (FY2015/2016: HK$80.0 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has current assets of HK$662.1
million and current liabilities of HK$360.1 million. The current ratio
was 1.84. (31 March 2016: 2.03).

Bank borrowings were HK$115.0 million as at 31 March 2017 (31
March 2016: HK$112.1 million). Gearing ratio (calculated by dividing
total bank borrowings by total equity) was 17.2% (31 March 2016:
16.8%) The Group maintained a net cash balance of HK$108.9 million
as at the balance sheet date (31 March 2016: HK$112.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CE:AERE AR

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$686.5 million (31 March 2016: HK$663.3 million)
from its principal bankers for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
with unused facilities of HK$566.1 million (31 March 2016: HK$555.1
million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. Banking facilities used by the Group include revolving
loans, trust receipt loans, overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which
are primarily on floating interest rates basis.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s total capital expenditures for the year under review
were HK$61.1 million. The capital expenditures were mainly for the
construction and leasehold improvement of Phase Il of the High-
tech Industrial Park in Dongguan amounted to HK$26.8 million. The
remaining balance of the capital expenditures was mainly for the
additions of machineries and equipment for PRC production plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
The Group's transaction and monetary assets are principally dominated
in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The Group
has not experienced any difficulties or effects on its operations or
liquidity as a result of the fluctuations in currency exchange rates
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

During the year, the Group held several foreign exchange contracts
to manage the currency translation risk of Renminbi against United
States dollars. All these foreign exchange contracts were for managing
purpose and it is the policy of the Group not to enter into any
derivative contracts purely for speculative activities. The net realized
loss related to these derivative instruments for the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$0.5 million.

18 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016/17

R-ZTE—+tFZA=+—H AEEREZ &
REEBESMERNEETZARBITRERITEE
#2 %8 47686,500,0008 T(Z T —RFEF=ZHA="1
—H 1 663,300,000/ 70) - MABE 2z E5EE
#$566,100,0008 T (ZE—~"F=A=+—H:
555,100,000 7T) °

ARE-BANBELERRAEBEBAK
RITRHZ ROTREARBERRRAS - &
BB RT I BB ERER - 2R
B EX BERESER ZBRIDH
e

EXEX

REEFE ASBE2EABRIRBREAR
61,700,000 L - EARAZ FZRAEE R =
SNREXRE_HREHEEMEREAH
26,800,000 T2 - R N EXRFH T HthE
ZRTPBELEEHREEERRERZME -

oh BE 2 Bz
AEEXSREREETEUARE - BIR
EMH - BE-T-LF-AS+BHLF
BoARENEAEEERS DS EES
RBESHBIANEBARICATE -

FR - AEERFBHMNIIELGL  UEBAR
BAETZERELRR - TEZSIINEELD
HAEEERAR  AEBLIETTIABRERE
BT LAEMTETAEANZEER HE-Z
—tF=A=+—HLFE BRETETH
B2 B 20 EEFTE /500,000 7T o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEEERE AR

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged its office premise located
at 22nd floor, tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon Bay together with 4
car parking spaces to secure a bank mortgage loan of HK$9.6 million
(31 March 2016: HK$12.4 million) for financing the acquisition of the
office premise and car parking spaces. Other than the said mortgage
loan, the Group did not pledge any of its assets as securities for the
banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a capital commitment of
HK$3.1 million for the construction contract and property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2016: 5.4 million).

Corporate guarantees given to banks to secure the borrowings granted
to subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$115.0 million
(31 March 2016: HK$112.1 million) and the Group did not have any
significant contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017 the Group has approximately 1,875 employees,
of which 71 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest were
mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy was reviewed regularly,
making reference to current legislation, market condition and both
the individual and company performance. In addition to salaries and
other usual benefits like annual leave, medical insurance and various
mandatory pension schemes, the Group also provides educational
sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus and share
options. A new share option scheme was adopted on 6 August 2012
which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the adoption
date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share Option
Scheme” on page 49 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREBANERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 67 is the founder, chairman and managing
director and chairman of the corporate governance committee of the
Group. He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy,
strategic planning and development, and overall management of the
Group. Dr. NG has over 40 years of management experience in the
electronics industry and had been teaching electronic engineering
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4 years. Dr. NG holds
a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a master of philosophy degree in computer engineering from
the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary doctor of engineering
degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. NG is a chartered engineer, a
fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an honorary fellow of the
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.

In addition, Dr. NG is a partner of Hong Kong-Shenzhen United
Investment Foundation, an advisor of the Technology Development
Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, an expert of the
Electronics Expert Panel, as well the Evaluation Panel for Soft-landing
Program of HK Science and Technology Park, he is chairman of Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association, honorary chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Council and vice chairman of Dongguan
Electronic Industries Association. Dr. NG is a member of the Advisory
Committee on Electronic Engineering and the School of Biomedical
Sciences of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also the
Assessment Panel Member under the Innovation and Technology Fund,
Innovation and Technology Commission, HKSAR Government.

On community services, Dr. NG is chairman of Sir Cecil Clementi
Scholarship Foundation under Education Bureau, HKSAR Government,
and a director of Hok Hoi Library.

Dr. NG is the father of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the executive
director of the Group and Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the general
manager of the pet business of the Group and the brother-in-law of
Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREEBANERE

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 59,
member of the corporate governance committee of the Group.

is the deputy chairman and a

Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall
strategic planning and policies, as well as overseeing the personnel,
administration and logistics of the Group. Mr. MA has worked with the
Group for more than 24 years and has over 35 years of experience in
the electronics industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a higher diploma in electronic engineering. Mr. MA is
the Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board Member, the
member of Advisory Committee on Pro-Act Training and Development
Centre (Electronics), Electronics & Telecommunication Training Board
and member of Working Party on Manpower Survey, Electronics &
Telecommunication Training Board.

Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, aged 36, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He is responsible for exploring new business
opportunities and overseeing Research and Development (R&D) of
the Group. Dr. NG joined the Group in 2014 and Dr. NG holds
Bachelor of Engineering (BEng (1st Hon.)) degree in Computing from
Imperial College London, Master of Science (S.M.) and Doctor of
Philosophy (Ph.D) degrees in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science from Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT). His research
focuses on modular hardware design methodologies that can greatly
reduce hardware development time. During his time at MIT, he had
collaborated with IBM, Nokia and Qualcomm in various research
projects. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. NG worked at Qualcomm'’s
New Jersey Research Center for 3 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi
Ho, the chairman and managing director of the Group, the nephew
of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the Group
and the brother of Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the general manager
of the pet business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREBANERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 59, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business management
from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr. LEE is the founder,
CEO of Kolinker Group of companies since its inception in 1983. In
addition, Mr. LEE is the fellow member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers, board member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
Foundation Limited, Panel member of Project Assessment Panel of
Small Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme (SERAP), member
of Enterprise Support Scheme (ESS) Assessment Panel, executive
committee member of Electronics Industry Council in Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. He is also an honorary life vice president of Poly
U Development Foundation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 58,
executive Director of the Group and a member of audit committee,

is an independent non-

remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree in accounting from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and a bachelor degree in social science from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a
practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG previously worked in Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited as an assistant vice president in
the International Finance and Corporate Finance Department. He
commenced public practice in auditing and taxation since 1990. He
is now the senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
LEUNG has over 32 years of experience in assurance, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate finance. Mr. LEUNG
is also an independent non-executive director of C C Land Holdings
Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited, Y.T. Realty Group
Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

EBITEESE

FHBRE DA AKERRTES -
BRHEEEEG ARSI EHETRBBELEM -
FRERMAEBERRZAIMA BZEER
*h}\ziﬁijtxﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ‘i‘&ﬁfw@ﬁ ° R

FRERBEIRMBGEREGE BTEFHF
I%%Tﬁ@%%%ﬁﬁkyﬁ NEIR R RE
BhEt &I BB SERAP)IEZ B G LB - bEXE

SEELZE®EE
BEF¥BETHITELE
RERE DK i

FEETXBEETER
W RBEBETIAEE

BIAFPTES

RFHEE A T\R AEEBIERITE
ERAEEEZZES FMWEZEQGRIERZE
BEXE c BEEFFBRMCharles Sturt RE =
AEBETEUREERNRENGREE L+ &
il - BAEEARRBELERTETSHMAE
FENMBEMNAESHMASNESN LD
FARBEAAREHMAE  BEESHMA
GREBVNBEGERGE - REENAEA
HESHA - RALEDHBRTNER(FH)
BRARF  EAEEem Rkt EmESS 2 BE
BlBH - BRI NWETFRUSERZRWBKT
¥ BR—HAXSHAMITZaREEA R

SHETEET  BF BB MBEERDOER
BITEEA=T_F&8 - %@SEEJT%%E;‘% it

F)’TJ:FD"TEP/HUEHH RAEBRAR - B@E
RARRA /Huj(iﬁl&%.ﬁﬁﬁﬁj&/ﬁ & &
Ff’%ﬁBEL\EZ%uL?E%ﬂﬂ%% °

EEEBEEERAT 2016175% | 23



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREEBANERE

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with
a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is now
a senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN
has over 40 years of working experience in accounting, auditing and
taxation.

Dr. CHEUNG Nim Kwan, aged 69, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. He was Chief
Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute (ASTRI), a 500-member R&D organization in the
information and communications area established by the Hong Kong
SAR Government. He has founded and served as the inaugural director
of the National Engineering Research Centre for Application Specific
Integrated Circuit Systems, the first National Engineering Centre
established in Hong Kong. Prior to joining ASTRI, Dr. CHEUNG has
held different research and senior management positions at AT&T Bell
Labs, Bellcore, and Telcordia Technologies. He is a Telcordia Fellow
and a Fellow of IEEE. Dr. CHEUNG served as the 18th President of the
IEEE Communications Society, a global professional organization with
45,000 members in 180 chapters around the world. He was Editor-
in-Chief of the IEEE Communications Magazine, and was appointed
Chairman of the IEEE Fellow Committee in 2012-13, where he presided
over the selection of all new IEEE Fellows worldwide. Dr. CHEUNG is an
Honorary Professor of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and has
served as Consulting Professor at Stanford University and in Research
Grants Council in Hong Kong. Dr. CHEUNG received his B.Sc. degree
from the University of Hong Kong, and M.S. and Ph.D. degrees from
the California Institute of Technology.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREBANERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 59, is the chief financial officer of
the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing the corporate and
financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LEE joined
the Group in early 2005 and has over 37 years of experience in
corporate finance, accounting and auditing. Before joining the Group,
he worked for a blue chip listed company in Hong Kong for 18 years
in a senior executive position. Mr. LEE graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. LEE
is the brother-in-law of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Group and the uncle of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred,
the Executive Director of the Group and Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony,
the general manager of pet business of the Group.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 47, is the general manager of electronic
manufacturing service (“EMS") division of the Group and is responsible
for overseeing the operations of Block A, DongGuan factory. Ms.
WONG holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China. She
joined the Group in 2002 and has over 24 years of experience in the
electronics manufacturing industry.

Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 39, is the general manager of EMS
and pet training products divisions and is responsible for the overall
operations including programme management, order management,
supply chain management, product development and manufacturing
in Block B, DongGuan factory. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from University of
New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT and telecommunication
companies. He has had international working exposure in the USA,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 53, is the general manager of the
marketing division. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. FUNG joined the Group in 2010
and has over 31 years of working experience in electronics sales and
marketing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREEBANERE

Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, aged 34, is the general manager
of the pet business. Since joining the Group in 2010, Mr. NG has
been responsible for developing the pet business and managing the
wholesale and the retail pet business in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Mr. NG has also been involving in the development of the smart
pet products for the Group. Mr. NG holds Bachelor of Science degree
in Robotics from The Staffordshire University, Postgraduate Diploma in
Computer Science from The University of Birmingham and Master of
Business Administration from The University of Wales, Newport. Mr.
NG has accumulated experience on pet business in last 7 years. He
is the son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the chairman and managing director of
the Group, the brother of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the executive
director of the Group and the nephew of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex,
the chief financial officer of the Group.
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CORRORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREGHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are committed to
attain and uphold a high standard of corporate governance that
properly protect and promote the interests of its shareholders and
other stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees and the
general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for CG Code A.2.1.

CG Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Up to the date of this report, the Group does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr.
Ng Chi Ho currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies. Going
forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as Chief Executive
Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Save as the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of the
Company is aware of information that would reasonably indicate the
Company is not or was not in compliance with the CG Code for the
year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of directors,
which now comprises seven members, coming from diverse businesses
and professional backgrounds. The Board consisted of three executive
directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy
Chairman) and Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, one non-executive director, Mr. Lee
Kam Hung and three independent non-executive directors (“INED"),
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim
Kwan (collectively the “Directors”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
tEER/RE

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the Group's
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding decision. For
the financial reporting accountability, the Board has the ultimate
responsibility for preparing the financial statements. The day-to-day
management is conducted by senior management and employees
of the Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, such events or conditions will be clearly set out and discussed
in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs among whom
one has to have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related finance management expertise. The role of INED is to
bring an independent and objective view to the Board’s deliberations
and decisions. The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) have been appointed
for a term of one year and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and
Listing Rules at each annual general meeting. Save as disclosed in the
biographical details of each director, there is no other relationship
business,

(including financial, family or other material/relevant

relationship) among members of the Board.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The Board is supplied with
relevant information by the senior management pertaining to matters
to be brought before the Board for decision as well as reports relating
to operational and financial performance of the Group before each
regular board meeting. At least 14 days notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity to attend.
Board papers are dispatched to the directors at least three days before
the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meeting.
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The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
Risk

management and internal control are defined as a process effected

policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls.

by the Board, management and other personnel, designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance of the
following:

—  effectiveness and efficiency operations

— reliability of financial reporting

—  compliance with applicable laws and regulations

—  effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2017 including the consideration of the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget. The Board assessed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, executive management and the
independent auditors’ management letters, if any, and is satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
functioning properly.
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Four regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General Meeting R HEFHNAERESTGeZ R AR E
were held during the year. The attendance of each director at the BEEAE® - KEZLFSHZNEFHNMT :
meeting is set out as follows:

Board meeting AGM
Name of directors EElZ EEEE: BREBEXEH
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) REEBELE(EE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BERLERER) 4/4 1/1
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RREELT 4/4 1/1
Non-Executive Director FERITES
Mr. Lee Kam Hung RIS 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFEHITESE
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHELE 4/4 1/
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRAREE 4/4 11
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan ok A i+ 4/4 1/1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING EEiE
Based on the training records provided to the Company by the MRIEBEZEZFmMAQRRE 2FIEH  FR - &

directors, the directors have participated in the following training = B2 LTI :
during the year:

Attended training courses,

seminars, workshops,
in-house briefs

HEERE  HAE

Directors THEY - ABERS
Executive Directors BITESE

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) REXBL(ERE) v
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BELEERFER) v
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk REFET v
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Mr. Lee Kam Hung 257 M SR 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFRITES

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHELE 4
Mr. Chan Kit Wang NN e 4
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan oKD L v
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE AND
INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the

Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to the committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
(the
Committee”) and the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate

Committee”), the nomination committee “Nomination
Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr. Leung Yu
Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven.

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice a year to
review and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, to review the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, and also monitor the appointment and function of the
Group’s independent auditors. Additional meetings may also be held
by the Committee from time to time to discuss special projects or
other issues of which the Audit Committee considers necessary. The
Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of
reference and are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Member of Audit Committee BREZEENE
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFH#ELE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR &
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan ok A iE

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2015/2016 annual report and fiscal year 2016/2017 interim report,
including the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group,
reviewed and discussed the financial results and risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, conducted discussions with the
independent auditors on financial reporting, compliance, and reported
all relevant matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year 2016/2017
annual report in a meeting held on 26 June 2017.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven. No director or senior executive
will be involved in any discussion in connection with his own
remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall
normally be held not less than once a year.

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration of executive
directors and senior management.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration structure. It also
reviews and guides the formulation of the Group’s performance related
pay schemes. Term of reference which described the authorities and
duties of the Remuneration Committee are publicly available on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
contents of which are in compliance with the CG Code.
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During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

FARHBIT=RFWNEZET=H
AR BEHINAT

Meeting attended

Member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHELE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRANR &
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan ok A iE £

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors, non-executive director, the INEDs, and
senior management; and reviewed the bonus to senior management.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2017, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management by band is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

$0 to $1,000,000

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000

$2,000,001 to $3,000,000
Further particulars regarding director’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 36 & 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr. Leung
Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan. The
Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Leung Yu Ming,
Steven.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be held not
less than once a year. The Committee will identify qualified candidates
to fill the Board membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions as
to any change that may be required. The Committee’s authority and
duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year. Details
of individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Member of the Nomination Committee

RBEEEE
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Meeting attended

H R

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHEE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRAREE
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan ok A i+

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of directors after considering their qualifications
and experience in relevant industries and re-election of the directors
subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-laws at the 2017
annual general meeting and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors according to the independence

requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of an INED’'s independence; and (b) if an INED has
served more than nine years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August, 2013. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the

benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement the board
diversity policy, where selection of candidates will be based on the
range of diversity perspectives as set out above, and the ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was
established on 21 February 2012. As at the date of this annual report,
the Corporate Governance Committee comprised of two executive
directors, namely Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) and Mr. Ma Fung On.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance Committee
is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance which are applicable to the Group
and making recommendations to the Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
(e) for the time
being in force. The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1. (a) to

Committee are available on the website of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance at this meeting is as follows:

Member of
the Corporate Governance Committee
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Meeting attended

HEEE R
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ETRE

Dr. Ng Chi Ho
Mr. Ma Fung On
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During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
and discussed the new requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Listing Rules and reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. The Company made specific enquiry of all
directors as to whether they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code regarding their securities transactions. It was
confirmed that there was full compliance. The relevant employee who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in possession of
inside information, have been requested to comply with the provisions
of the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The finance department of
the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting principles.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC").
The financial reporting responsibilities of the independent auditors are
set out on page 85 to 92 of this annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately HK$2,700,000 was
payable to PwC for the provision of audit services. In addition,
approximately HK$389,000 was payable to PwC for other non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax compliance and
other services.
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D EEBRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huen Po Wah resigned as company secretary due to reaching
retirement age and Ms. Zeng Zhi was appointed as company secretary
on 1 December 2016.

Ms. Zeng is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures
are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively
conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is
briefed on relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments. During the year, both Mr. Huen and Ms. Zeng have
duly complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility in establishing
an appropriate risk management and internal control systems, and
reviewing their effectiveness regularly. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority to safeguard its assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; to ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for management use or for publication and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

Management is responsible in the design and implementation of the
risk management and internal control systems. A Risk Management
Committee was established to monitor the operations of risk
management and internal control systems and provide confirmation to
the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the systems regularly.
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CORRORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREGHRE

Risk Management

The purpose of risk management is to ensure that the risks to the
Group are identified, analyzed, and managed at an acceptable level. In
order to provide a sound and effective risk management system, a Risk
Management Manual is established to specify the Risk Management
Framework and Risk Management Processes.

The Risk Management Framework outlines the responsibilities of the
Board, the senior management, the Audit Committee, the Internal
Audit and the Risk Management Committee. The Board, through its
risk oversight role, ensures that the senior management establishes risk
management policies to identify and evaluate risks. Each subsidiary/
division implements such policies and processes in the daily operations
and reports significant risks identified to the senior management
promptly and regularly. The senior management and Risk Management
Committee will communicate the risk management findings to
the Audit Committee and the Board for their assessment of the
effectiveness of the relevant risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Risk Management Processes including the followings:

1. Risk Identification — each subsidiary or division to identify its
own risks.
2. Risk Analysis — analyze the identified risks for potential impact

and likelihood of occurrence.

3. Risk Register — the likelihood of occurrence and impacts of
identified risks are defined. The top risks are identified according
to the rating obtained from risk assessment and documented
in a risk register. Each operating subsidiary/division records the
risk events occurred in the risk register and the action taken to
reduce the impact of the risk to the Group.

4. Risk Mitigation — identify the existing controls over the relevant
risks to avoid, reduce or transfer the risks, or to accept the
identified risks with low impact or likelihood.

5. Risk Confirmation — the process of confirmation to the Risk
Management Committee, Audit Committee and the Board by the
management of the completion of the risk monitoring process
and report the risks occurred, if any, during the review period
that have significant impact to the Group.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Group has established systems of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliabilities of financial
and management reporting, compliances of laws and regulations
and safeguarding of assets. The system of internal control provides
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
or frauds.

Suga has an Internal Audit function. Internal Audit reviews material
internal control aspects of the Group, including financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management.

Internal Audit carries out audit in accordance with audit plan that is
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
approved internal audit schedule, Internal Audit may conduct other
review and investigation for the Group’s business on an ad hoc basis
as and when necessary.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Group Internal
Audit Department conducted audits and issued internal audit reports
to management covering various operational and finance functions of
the Group. The half-yearly internal audit reports and its findings were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a half-yearly basis.
Relevant findings and recommendations reported by the Internal Audit
were communicated with the management and actions were taken to
resolve defects as and when identified. There is no material internal
control defects identified during the year.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control effectiveness
The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems by reviewing
the work performed by the Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee and the Internal Audit Department for the financial year
ended 31
including operational, financial and compliance control, and risk

March 2017. The review covered all material controls,

management functions. The scope and the quality of ongoing
monitoring of risks and internal control systems have been assessed.
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CORRORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREGHRE

Dissemination of Insider Information

The Company conducts its business affairs according to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Future Commission. The Company strictly prohibits the unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information by Directors, employees and
other relevant persons (such as external service providers and project
working team members).

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In order to ensure the market, shareholders and
stakeholders are fully and promptly informed about the material
developments in the Company’s business, the Board has adopted
continuous disclosure policy and procedures to handle proper
information disclosure. Release of inside information is subject to the
approval of the Board. All staff of the Company shall not communicate
inside information to any external parties unless with approval from
the Board. As such, staff shall not respond to market speculation
and rumours unless authorised. In addition, all external presentation
materials or publication must be pre-vetted before released.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are functioning effectively and adequately.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS
The Board

communications with shareholders. In order to develop and maintain

recognises the importance of maintaining effective
continuing relationship with the shareholders of the Company, the
Company established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i)  the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for the
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board;

(i) publication of announcements and circulars on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii)  publication of financial statements containing a summary of the
financial information and affairs of the Group for the interim
and full financial year via the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company;
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(iv) interim reports, annual reports and circulars that are sent to all
shareholders;

(v)  notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings; and

(vi)  the management of the Group continually conducts meetings
with investors, analysts and the media, and provides them
with up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding the
Company'’s development and answers to their queries.

The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk, where
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and news can always be found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the contact details as follows:

Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting and
put forward proposals at general meeting. The procedures are as
follows:

(A) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General Meeting
1981, the
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act

of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall have the right to convene a
special general meeting of the Company. If the directors do not
within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists
representing more than one half of the total voting rights may
themselves convene a meeting.
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(B)
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The written requisition for the special general meeting can be
lodged at the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at 22nd
Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the attention
of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a person for
election of a director at an annual general meeting is available
for viewing at the Company’s website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company has been posted on the website of the Company
at www.suga.com.hk and the designated website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal
in the
manufacture and sale of electronic and other products. Details of the

subsidiaries are engaged research and development,
principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and discussion
on the Group's prospects, as well as discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
material factors underlying its financial performance are set out in the
“Chairman Statement” on pages 9 to 14, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 16 to 19 and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 64 to 84 of this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing is provided in the section of Risk Management and Internal
Control in “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 38 to 41.
Additionally, the financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Company can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important event
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year ended 31 March 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

SUGA's commitment to excellence extends to the Group conducting
its business in a manner that respects the environment. The strive
for cleaner production has led SUGA to adopt energy conservation
practices that can reduce environmental risks and liabilities as well
as improve competitiveness. Details of environment policy and
performance are set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance

Report” on pages 64 to 84 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures to ensure its operations comply
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board of Directors is
responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices making
sure they agree with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and
that those policies and practices are regularly reviewed for adequacy.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
as necessary to the attention of relevant employees and operating
units.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, as far as it is aware, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong
Kong that have a significant impact on its business and operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Discussions on the Group's relationships with its employees, customers
and suppliers are set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 64 to 84 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 95 of this annual
report.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share were paid
during the financial year. The Directors have proposed the payment of
a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2017. Total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to HK15.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 14 August 2017 is
expected to be paid on or before 25 August 2017 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders
of the Company on 18 August 2017.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (CONTINUED)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(i)

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
from 8 August 2017 to 14 August 2017 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be registered, for the purpose of determining the identity of
the shareholders entitled to attend and vote at 2017 Annual
General Meeting. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 August
2017.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed on
18 August 2017 during which day no transfer of shares in the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of determining the
entitlement of the shareholders to receive the proposed final
dividend. Subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2017
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be
payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Shareholders of the Company on 18 August 2017. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 August 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of

the Company during the year are set out in the note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS — SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED
TO DIRECTORS AND SELECTED EMPLOYEES
Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
is set out in note 26 of the financial statements and “Share option
scheme” section contained in this Directors’ Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2017 calculated
under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to HK$116,779,000 (2016:
HK$98,478,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$297,000.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2017 are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 212 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Dr. Ng Chi Ho, Dr. Ng Man
Cheuk and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan will retire by rotation in accordance
with Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the retiring Directors
are being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 September 2002 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On,
being Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2004 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, being Executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 May 2015 and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its broadened
basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention
of high caliber professional’s executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August 2012, the
Company'’s share option scheme adopted on 17 September 2002 (the
“Old Share Option Scheme”) was terminated and cease to have any
further effect except that the Old Share Option Scheme will remain
in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the
options granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted which
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme and will expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant Options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme will enable
the Group to reward its employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and will also
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high calibre
professionals, executives and employees who are instrumental
to the growth of the Group.

Who may join

The Directors (which expression shall include a duly authorized
committee thereof) may, at their absolute discretion subject
to the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to subscribe
for Shares:

(@ any employee (whether full time or part time including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(©) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

2,

Who may join (Continued)

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme, the Options
may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any Options by the
Company for the subscription of Shares or other securities of the
Group to any person who fall within any of the above classes
of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors otherwise
determined, be construed as a grant of Option under the New
Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of participants
to the grant of any Options shall be determined by the Directors
from time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to
his contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for subscription
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme must not
exceed 10% of the issue share capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme was
42,753,000 shares (including 22,560,000 shares subject to
options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 15.19% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

4,

52

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of Options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant shall be subject to the issue of
a circular to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting of the Company with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting. The number and terms
(including the exercise price) of the Options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the
date of Board meeting for proposing such further grant should
be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the exercise price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an Option.

Exercise period of an option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence on a day upon which the offer for the
grant of Options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the Option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

7.

Time and payment on acceptance

An offer of the grant of the Option may be accepted by a
participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of
the Option and the Option in respect of the number of Shares
in respect of which the offer was so accepted will be deemed
to have been granted on the date of grant of the Options.

Minimum period and performance targets
Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of Options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to hold an Option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before any Options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 5 August 2022. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BB EI(E)

9. Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme 9. HEBKRESTEIZREGEL(E)
(Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period from H-_FE—R"FENA—HEZZE—+tF=H
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 under the Old Share Option —T—HHMEA & ,ﬁﬁﬂ R 1
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme are as follows: BEEIBETBREZHFROT:
Number of share options
BiRERE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding during during during Outstanding
at 1 April the the the at 31 March Exercise
2016 period period period 2017 price Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB—RE R=®B—t%
A—H =A=+-—8H
BARITE BAHRYH HRiTHE BHAKRY 18 K 1T & RHEBH TEH
Dr. Ng Chi Ho 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
fREeFHt “T-BF-AthA =—F-#F-A+tARE
—ZE-_FF—-A+/N\B
Mr. Ma Fung On — 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
FEREE (Note 1) ZZE-R"EXNA=ZTHE ZFE-XREXNA=t+HEZE
(F3E1) —E-_—FXAZ+ANB
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk — 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
REREHEL (Note 1) ZZE-AFERNA=+A ZE-R"EXA=FH=ZE
(B 3E1) —EBE-_—FXA=+ANRB
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
TR E —E-NFE=A-+—H —ET-WE=A=+—-HBZE
—ZT-AF=A=-+H
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
Steven —Z-NF=ZA=+—A ZT-—"WE=ZA=+—AHF
RFHELE —E-AF=RA=+H
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
FRANER S & —E-WF=A=+—H —FE-WOF=ZA=-+—HE
—E-AF=A=+H
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan — 300,000 = = 300,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
KRBt (Note 1) —E—AR"FXA=1tH —E-RNEXNA=FTRHZE
(P 3E1) —T-—FXA=t+ANH
Continuous Contract 36,000 — 16,000 20,000 — 1.750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014-21 October 2016
Employees (Note 2) —T——%+A=+—8 =%~ P_Tl¢+ﬁ +=ZBE
HEANESR (Bt £2) —T—RE+A=+—H
Continuous Contract 450,000 — 250,000 — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015-20 March 2019
Employees (Note 3) —ZE—NFEF=A—+—H —E—HRF=A-_t+—HZ
BHEBANEER (B 5£3) “ZE-AF=A=tH
Continuous Contract 1,300,000 — — — 1,300,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
Employees —T—-hAF¥—A+hB Z—ZZET-HE—-At+hBE
HBANWER =z=_zf-— 5 +/]\R
Continuous Contract 4,700,000 — 2,500,000 = 2,200,000 2.260 10 July 2015 10 July 2015-9 July 2020
Employees (Note 4) —T-hFtA+AH —T-hFtATHZE
REANEER (B 5£4) —E-_FEFtANA
Continuous Contract 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 2.800 16 July 2015 16 July 2015-15 July 2019
Employees —E-HFEtAt+ARE ZE-RFLATREBEE
RHEANESR —E-AFtA+AEA
Continuous Contract 4,210,000 — 1,110,000 350,000 2,750,000 2.142 7 January 2016 7 January 2017-6 January 2021
Employees (Note 5) —T—-R"FE—-AtH —T—+F—AtHZE
RHEBANER (Bt £5) —ZE-_—%—H8XH
Others 400,000 — — — 400,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
H At (Note 6) —E-WNF=ZA=+—H —FE-WOF=ZA=+—HZE
(Hf 5£6) —ZE-AF=A=+H
23,896,000 3,300,000 3,876,000 370,000 22,950,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BB HERTEI(E)

9. Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme 9. WREKRESIZHMBEELHE)
(Continued)
Notes: B 5
1. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (30 1. RAARBRDREEERERHER(ZZ—X

June 2016) on which the share options were granted was HK$2.120. FRA=ZTE)AI 2 TER21208 7T °
RAFRERE » K2R R EH16,00015 8
% 8 % 77 {3 & B AT 2 AN 4 39 W B R 2.175
BT °

2. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 2.
Company’s share immediately before the date on which 16,000 share

options were exercised was HK$2.175.

RAFBRFE - ARE B R EE250,00010
BB AT (R H AT Z IR U (B /52303

3. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 3.

Company’s share immediately before the date on which 250,000 share

options were exercised was HK$2.303.

BT e

4. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 4. RABBEFE - KA E KGR E#2,500,000
Company’s share immediately before the date on which 2,500,000 share MEREETEZEBAIZMEFLHRTER
options were exercised was HK$2.233. 2.233% 7T ©

5. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 5. RAMBEE - RNRQF KGR E 1,110,000
Company’s share immediately before the date on which 1,110,000 share MEREETEZEBAIZMEFLTHRTER
options were exercised was HK$2.427. 24277 7T ©

6. Among 400,000 share options, 200,000 share options were granted to 6. 1£400,00017 & iz # & - 200,00017 F& % # T)

EP—2pES-

a former director.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

9. Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme
(Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period from
1 April 2017 to 29 June 2017 under the Scheme Option Scheme
are as follows:

Number of share options
BRENE
Granted Exercised Lapsed

Outstanding during during during Outstanding
at 1 April the the the at 29 June
2017 period period period 2017
R-®—tf R=ZT—tF
mA—H ~A=+nBH
EARTE HARH BATE BRI 18 R AT €

RE Iz 4 51 81 (48)

9.

Exercise
price

TEE
(HK$

HEEREST S 2 FERER (E)

B +FWA—BZE=-F—+FA
“+thBHER FERESFEETZE
MEEZEFBOT

Date of grant Exercisable period

R AH TIER

Dr. Ng Chi Ho 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
ReszEt —Z-HF—AtNhB ZT-RF—ATNBEE
—ZT-ZT&—A+/NB
Mr. Ma Fung On 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
BEREE ZZE-RERNA=Z+THE ZE-R"EXA=THE
—E-—FXA=-+NAH
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
REREHEL —E-R"EXNA=1+A ZE-XR"EXA=tHZE
—E-—FXA=tAhAH
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
EX b “F-WNF=A=+—HB —F-WOF=ZA=+—HE
—Z-hAF=A=+H
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
Steven —ZT-—WE=A=t+—H —T—WE=A=+—HZ
RFHELE —E-AF=A=+H
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 = = = 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
BRANZE T E —T—NWE=A=+—H —T-—WmWE=ZA=-+—HE
—ZE-NAF=ZRA=+H
Dr. Cheung Nim 300,000 — — — 300,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
Kwan ZE-R"FEXNA=+HE ZE-R"EX~A=T+BE
R —Z-_—FXA=+NH
Continuous Contract 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015-20 March 2019
Employees —T-WFE=ZA=+—A ZT—AF=-A=+—BZE
HEAHREE —E-AF=A=+H
Continuous Contract 1,300,000 = = = 1,300,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
Employees —T-RF—ABtNHB Z—E—AF—At+thEBZE
S EEHIES —ZE-_ZE5—A+/\B
Continuous Contract 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000 2.260 10 July 2015 10 July 2015-9 July 2020
Employees —E-HFtA+H —E-HFtA+EE
HEAHES —E-_THELANA
Continuous Contract 10,000,000 — — — 10,000,000 2.800 16 July 2015 16 July 2015-15 July 2019
Employees —E-RFE+tA+AE —E-RELAT+ABE
HEACHREE —E-hAFtAt+HAA
Continuous Contract 2,750,000 — 390,000 = 2,360,000 2.142 7 January 2016 7 January 2017-6 January 2021
Employees (Note) —ZET—R~F¥—AtH —T—t+tF—-AtHZE
SEEHIES (Hft 32D —ZT_-—%—AXH
Others 400,000 — — — 400,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
HAh —E-WF=A=Z+—H ZE-NF=A=+—HZ
—ZT-hAF=A=-+H
22,950,000 — 390,000 — 22,560,000
Notes: B 5
1. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 1. RABBFEE - A2 AR MR E$#390,000

Company’s share immediately before the date on which 390,000 share

options were exercised was HK$2.464.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and the short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under such
positions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which

EERKRGZER

N_E—tF=ZA=+—H ARREERA
REREEFARBEE (EERESFRRERD
((EHEEBEED D EXVER) Z iy - HERD
LEHZT  BERBEZSFRPEGIFEXVIESE
R8N MR EAMEARA KRB BB ERXFHN
BRAR (MR Em AR (BRREE
ZRARGOIARGXRERGEHEREFEER
ZHBIRR)  RALAREEFLHEED
ERNEHFEZECMzRERRR  HRE
EHERTAEFETEZRSONFEESTR(F

<P A ) B 0@ AR R R R B2 4 3 BOK R
LN

are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company and its RARX A K& EFEEE 2 K5 REBR G52 #
associated corporation. % o

EERREMERAR 2016175 % |

(@) Interests in shares of the Company (a) MRELATIRHZHERS
Number of
Percentage underlying
of issued shares held
Number ordinary under equity
Name of Director Capacity of shares Total interests shares derivatives
BAEGTETR
EEsTEiE ETHEHEMR
EEns 5% BHEBE EnEE =R 074 BHEBE
(Note 1)
(B 5E1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner En#EAA 6,930,000(L) 163,428,000(L) 58.16%(L) 2,200,000
REZFEL 10,000,000(S) 3.56%(S)
Interests of controlled =& /AB#zm  46,498,000(L)
corporation 10,000,000(S)
(Note 2)
(B 5E2)
Founder of a 2REER 110,000,000(L)
discretionary trust Bl 5% & (Note 3)
(P 5% 3)
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner En#EAA 4,323,000(L)  14,223,000(L) 5.06%(L) 1,000,000
Interests of controlled 5 42 7% B # 25 9,900,000(L)
corporation (Note 4)
(Fff 5£4)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk Beneficial owner En#EAA 1,000,000(L) 111,000,000(L) 39.50%(L) 2,000,000
REREEL
Beneficiary of a 2HEE 110,000,000(L)
discretionary trust Zm A (Note 3)
(P 5% 3)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Interests of controlled 542 % & # 25 1,057,800(L) 1,057,800(L) 0.38%(L) 200,000
TR LEE corporation (Note 5)
(P 5E5)
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Beneficial owner BEamEEA 330,000(L) 330,000(L) 0.12%(L) 200,000
RFEHEE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang Beneficial owner EmEAA — — — 200,000
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan Beneficial owner EmEEA — — — 300,000
SRS T
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONTINUED)
Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

58

Notes:

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
opinions granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the

sub-section “Share Option Scheme”.

46,498,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the entire issued
shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal share.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc., the entire issued shares
of which is ultimately held by Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the
C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which are the family members of
Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises Limited, the entire

issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma Fung On.

1,057,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the ultimate

shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position.

Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga Electronics

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company:

Name of Director Capacity

ESsHs & 6

Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled
REEEL corporation
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled
BERTE corporation

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016/17

EENkirziExz (@)
(a) RELFRGZEE(E)

e

1. BRI AR B AT B RS & 2 iR A
niED  ERFBRNERESE]NE -

2. % 46,498,000% i {5 f Billion Linkage Limited
BE MEZRAREBERITROMBERERE
THHERBER—F -

3. #%5110,000,000 % % 1 FA Superior View Inc.#
B MEZRAZHBERETROBERCH Rk
15 7 ¥ %t A Z Fidelitycorp Limited 48 #5 48 -
ZEAZEEARRABEELIZRE -

4. #%%9,900,000% % 15 1 Global Class Enterprises
Limited#5 5 - MZ AR EHEEITRMHAES
BREEREB -

5. #%1,057,800/% f% 15 F1 Quick Fit Enterprises
Ld# B THRMEERZRAIRKRR -

6. L—FE S — %2 -
(b) REASHBZERDZER

RARRZEWMBRABEEEFAERAR
FREE1.008 T < EBIRERELERD

Number of
Non-voting
deferred Percentage of
shares issued shares
ERREEBE LERTRY
R 3 8 H Bt
(Note 1)
CiE=))

RIEEBEE R 3,680,000 92%
(Note 2)
(Bt 5£2)

XA EER 240,000 6%
(Note 2)
(B 5£2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONTINUED)
(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation (Continued)

Notes:

1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares has been distributed to

the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga Electronics Limited are
held as to 80% by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and 20% by Broadway
Business Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold 92% and
6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway

Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Scheme”,
none of the Directors of the Company have any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO as at 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE
Save as disclosed in above section, at no time during the year was
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture
of, the Company or anybody corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its parent company,
or its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company, his connected entities were materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

EENkirziEx (@)
(b) REAFTHEBEERG Z#E R
(48)

M 5E

1. ZEEBERETRG ERERERRBURE
BEN O RELZBERFBEACESRERE
A% 10,000,000,000 T - ZEEEZEIE
ERODFEAAFATEDIR ©

2. 4,000,000 EEEFARAREREZEL
[i% 17 % Bl B3 Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited$%H580% f%20%
REFHLRFELEES B BN Essential
Mix Enterprises Limited 52 Broadway Business
Limited ¥ 5 92% [ 6% 1 &% °

R EXR[BREE B THREEIN R
—E—tEF-ZA=1T—H ARBESEH
ERARRLERBZEZE(EERESRR
BRI 2B HERORES T E
BEMERLAR -

EERERGABEFET
BE—GHAREEN  AAF HBATRK
{0 {60 Y BB 2 ) o D 2R 28 ) 48 74 £ £ B85 Dt 4
FTST M E AD R S A A B AR K 5
B e B 3 TS F a5 0 (E T 2 4 -

EENRXS  ZHISHZER

RERKFAEMER - NA7F - AR RAISHHE
MBARKRARABABMETVEASTEXRKE
BMZEMEARS  RHIAH BARAE
EREREERMEERAHEERZERS
CHRANTHEAEMERNEE -

EEEEEEERAT 2016175% | 59
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DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS
According to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing business as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity

5 6

EEZHETRERI

BREARANATMA - AARGEEHRRET
ERBREBRTERB T EREL LRI A
TEFERBBLAERARRBEREAR
AERENTEDAN - AAAEAEERE
GHERBABNEERERMBETRE -

EENRERB2HER
EERH URIATEHARSHERAA
BHETRATETRAD AT 2 BFLR -

FERRE

R-ZE—tHF=ZA=1+—8 BRAQFAREZE
HFREIEIGRGIE3B6GTFE 2 EMATaEx - T
AT (UHEARREFTHEBITHAB)RA
REZBMREEERD T EERIERE SR
EHRPIEXVERE2 N30 B4R T AW AN AR 5R
ZIEmBIRR °

Number

Percentage of

issued shares
LEETES
Bk

of shares

Bz 3 2 B

Superior View Inc. (Note 1)
Superior View Inc. (Fff7%1)
Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2)
Billion Linkage Limited (Fff 5£2)
Lee Wai Fun (Note 3)
FE 5 (M sE3)

Beneficial owner

EREAA

Beneficial owner

EmERA

Interest of spouse

fic 18 # &=

Interest of controlled corporation

RErEES
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110,000,000(L)

46,498,000(L)
10,000,000(S)
119,130,000(L)

46,498,000(L)
10,000,000(S)

39.15%(L)
16.55%(L)

3.56%(S)
58.94%(L)

3.56%(S)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which
are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held by Dr. Ng Chi
Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such, Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.

3. Madam Lee Wai Fun is deemed to be interested in 119,130,000 shares (including
2,200,000 underlying shares held under equity derivatives) held by her spouse,
Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a director of the Company.

4. (L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors, there
is no person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as at 31 March 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

FERRER)

B 2

1. Superior View Inc. 2 8B # 1T ABIEACH REE
1 5E A ZFidelitycorp Limited &R ¥ H » % {EE 2
XuARREBZELTZRE -

2. Billion Linkage Limited2 SE#H TR AHREZE L
HERBEME—¥ WRBEZFHFRUEKH 28
= 18 4 4 18 & ¥ A Billion Linkage Limited Ff 35 8 & #F
M 1n < e am o

3. FERBLTHEEARERBARAEFTRERE LT
FF A #9119,130,000 I 5 (B IER B R ITET AR
A 2,200,000 HE R D) PHEB #E = o

)

4. L— TR () — %R

)

BREXHEEIN RZE—tF=A=+—8"
EXEVTHEREFTRARREEZITHRABS
BEEFAALTRARBRMDEABROT  EA
ERREESFEPEEROIEXVIEFE2 M3 BR
EAMARARBEZIEDIRE °

EEEH
Ep - ARRBET LR EEBARA R H
REABLEEEHLERRTHAL -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer for the year accounted for approximately
15.4% of the Group’s total revenue and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 52.7% of the Group’s total revenue.
In addition, the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 20.7% of the Group’s purchases while the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 36.9% of the
Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2017, the Company was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration were
pending or threatened or made against the Company so far the
Company is aware.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the

“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 28 to 43.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year have been audited by
offered

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

themselves for re-appointment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)

The Company has a serious commitment to ESG matters. A report on
the environmental, social and governance commitment can be found

on pages 64 to 84.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017

RE HERER(RE HER
gigl)

ARABEWERRE HEREANEE - A
RS HekBEaAmNREHNFE64E84
KEEFE

EEERKEARAT

E

RER

B —T—tEFRAZTIA

EEEREEARAT 2016/174% | 63



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE) HERERHRSE

FORWARD

This report is the first annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) report of Suga International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(referred to in this report as “the Group” or “SUGA") (Stock code:
00912). The report covers the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

This report presents SUGA's compliance with the “Comply or Explain”
provision of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (HKEX ESG Reporting Guide).

Report Scope

This report covers the operations of SUGA’s core business in Hong
Kong and its Plant in Dongguan, PRC. SUGA, as a leading electronics
total solution provider in Hong Kong, has a mission to contribute to
the progress of society by providing people with quality products and
employing advanced technology, with protecting the environment and
serving the community always in mind.

This report highlights SUGA's sustainability efforts in:

—  Environmental Aspects (emissions, use of resources, the

environment and natural resources)
—  Social Aspects (employment, health and safety, development and

training, labour standards, supply chain management, product
responsibility, anti-corruption and community investment)
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R ) HERERRE

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS SUMMARY ETFHHAREHRE
Comply or Explain Provisions Disclosure Comply/Explain Location of Disclosure
B HARE WEET A WmEET
Aspect A1 Emissions Comply Aspect Al
BHE ATEER YD FEASH [EHE Al
Aspect A2 Use of Resources Comply Aspect A2
[BE A2ER{E R B [EmE A2
Aspect A3 The Environmental and Natural Resources Comply Aspect A3
BH ASRRERRAER B<F [EmE A3
Aspect B1 Employment Comply Aspect B1
JEE B1EE LA JE HE B1
Aspect B2 Health and Safety Comply Aspect B2
EBm BERRL e FEASH JEE B2
Aspect B3 Development and Training Comply Aspect B3
EH B3% & &I FAST € m B3
Aspect B4 Labour Standards Comply Aspect B4
B B4 T AR LA JEHE B4
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management Comply Aspect B5
JEE BSf & 2 E 18 LA JEmE BS
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility Comply Aspect B6
EmE BeEmE T EASH EE B6
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption Comply Aspect B7
BE BIRAS s B 87
Aspect B8 Community Investment Comply Aspect B8
EmE BSHEIRE A JEE B8
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RE) HERERRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Environment Sustainability

SUGA recognises the importance of environmental sustainability
and is committed to protecting the environment. We incorporate
environmental considerations into business processes and continue
an ongoing commitment to environment protection in line with
laws and regulations within Hong Kong and Mainland China. SUGA
has implemented various measures to achieve the following priority
objectives in environmental aspects:

—  Reducing emissions of greenhouse gases and other pollutants
— Achieving savings in energy
—  Reducing waste generation

In supporting the Group to develop an all-round corporate social
responsibility (CSR) and green culture, we have incorporated the
environmental management systems and processes of 1SO14001 and
QC080000 in our operations and have educated employees through
setting environmental protection guidelines.

During this financial year, we have participated in various green
activities and garnered the following awards, certificates and

recognition for our efforts.
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Organizer Awards and Certificate

EWEM 28 I8 R 5% 58

Environmental Campaign 2016 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental
Committee & Environmental Excellence (HKAEE) Manufacturing & Industrial
Protection Department Services — Certificate of Merit

AREDERORAAREE 06T ERBIHAR
WEERTEBYRAERS N

Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence

China Quality Certification Centre Accreditation of ISO 14001:2004

PEEEREPDO ISO 14001 : 20043 &
SGS United Kingdom Limited Accreditation of QC080000
QCO80000:R &
Environmental Campaign Hong Kong Green Organisation (2015-2017) Oﬁ@*&m
Committee B8 4 © H18 (2015-2017) greenorg
BREEBHZEES
Hong Kong Green Management Network '
Productivity Council (HKPC) 15 5, 18 48 45 - ‘-1," &%Eﬁﬂﬁ
EHEENRER RBEEIEME wawnen Green Management Network

The Economic and Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production W
Information Commission of Excellent Partner (Manufacturing) &.l

G d Provi d G s <l L [ s .
Environmental Profeetion BB EEEBUE (RER) R
Department of B I A AR
Hong Kong Special Hong Kong - Guangdong

Cleaner Production Partner

Administrative Region

EREKBMNERLEEER
EBRNTRERFRER

The Hong Kong Q-Mark Council ~ The Hong Kong Green Mark Certification

EREEES Scheme
BEABIQEIRREEE

FRCFREEENN
Hang
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RE ) HEREBRE

The 24th Green Power Hike —

The Corporation/Organisation Cup — 25km
FUEH#CHERETESTLULEITHELEERSE —
2BNEERE

Hong Kong Green Day
EE#ZeR

Our staff has been participating in the Green Power Hike for
over 15 years.
BMWEIEBREASFE—EL2EGBNERET
=5 .

BETUE

Our volunteers actively took part in the Green Council’'s Hong
Kong Green Day on 5 June 2016.
B EIREBR2ERRELESRN
WEBKER -

T RNFEANARBET

International Coastal Cleanup 2016 Hong Kong

2016 B BEIRBRERED

Walk for Nature@ Mai Po 2016
KIFERREEISERBR2016]FTER

Our volunteers actively took part in the International Coastal
Cleanup 2016 Hong Kong.
B E TRGLHE0168BEERGFERES -

Our colleagues and their families joined the Walk for Nature
organised by WWF at Hong Kong's iconic Mai Po Nature Reserve
in November 2016.
BHMHEAFRARAZNMEARBARAESCEEEDERN_T—
ﬁi+—ﬂﬁ¢%§%m%m#ﬁﬁ%%%@ﬁmﬁﬁiiﬁ
BARIFITER

P—r

- i A | - 3 B
i_ R 3 L"}." . " £ o -
Walk # Iulm ik :
- '“rr!ﬂm@ i BEER
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ASPECT Al1: EMISSIONS

SUGA is committed to protecting the environment by reducing
greenhouse gases emissions as well as by reducing discharge into water
and land alike, and generation of less hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. We fully comply with the relevant laws and regulations related
to gas emissions and waste management.

Reduce Greenhouse Gases Emissions

SUGA's main sources of greenhouse gases and other polluting
emissions are electricity usage and our vehicle fleet. We reduce
greenhouse gas emissions by the measures stated in the Measures
to Mitigate Emissions section. We manage to reduce emissions by
monitoring electricity consumption, implementing energy-saving
measures and reducing use of our vehicle fleet.

Reduce Generation of Hazardous & Non-hazardous Wastes

Hazardous waste is not an area where SUGA generates a large
volume of materials. Furthermore, we have hired specialist contractors
to handle hazardous waste materials generated from Raw Material
Incoming Quality Assurance (IQA) operations in the PRC Dongguan
Plant. In addition, only vendors that comply with RoHS (Restriction
and REACH
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals) codes can be included

of Hazardous Substance) (Registration, Evaluation,
in our “Approved Vendors List”. And only approved vendors are
permitted to provide us raw materials in order to ensure that our

products are environmentally-friendly.

SUGA’'s main source of non-hazardous waste is the rubbish generated
from business operations, and the Dongguan Plant Central Canteen
and Dormitory.

Measures to Mitigate Emissions

SUGA has implemented a wide range of measures to reduce
greenhouse gases and emissions of other pollutants highlighted by the
following:

— Implementing a Solar Panel Energy System at the Dongguan
Plant in April 2017 which can provide around 850,000 KWH of
electricity per annum

B AL : BER
EERNBEBROBEREER  BEKTR
BEHS R AREERVEER B2
RAREBE - RM2EATEBREEMR
BEREEMARERRES

B RERBEHER

BB = R R E M5 RPN EBAOR
RAERBRMOBEL « RIPIAR D HER I 16
—H L S A PR KR T RS - RAES
ERREE - HIETE AL i KON AE B
P -

BLOEEREREEREHR
BEEENYHF  BEEEMOMGELEN - @
B ZMEEAEMHASEERENFERTR
B R R 5|3 E 2R 7 (Raw Material Incoming
Quality Assurance) (IQA)ETSFTE £ KA ERE
o o - REFAROHS (B EWMHERAES
NREACH (b 2 mak il ~ 571k - EMR &) <7
Al s AR MMz et e 2 E]
i R A% e 7 7 B] [ P 4R A R R A R AR
BMNERMERRATE -

EHEOBREENNIEREREEEERRS
B R AR R TR S BT A MR -

D T 1 e
EHEEBE—RNERUABEAER A
SRR BEDT

— RIE—tFHUAERZ=MERMAKERE

REER R & - A& F 12 H 4850,000F &
FFAYE 7

EEEREEERAT 201617F%H | 69



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE) HERERRE

—  Using LED lighting in all areas of the Hong Kong Office and the

Dongguan Plant in the PRC to save energy

— A frequency converter was deployed in production lines and the
air-conditioning system in the Dongguan Plant to save energy in

production processes

—  Monitoring electricity consumption by measuring monthly

electricity usage

—  Reducing use of our fleet by careful implementation of

transportation plans

— Installing various types of sensors for electricity switches in the

Dongguan Plant to reduce electricity consumption

— Implementing guidelines, slogans and posters to educate
employees about energy-saving and environmentally-friendly

concepts and encouraging them to live a green life

Waste Management for Hazardous and Non-hazardous
Substances

Our waste management strategy is in line with the key 4R principles

— Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace.

We have undertaken the following measures to mitigate waste

generation:

— Hazardous waste is not a major issue in our operations,
nevertheless we have a team and lab to monitor hazardous waste

created during the Incoming Quality Assurance process

— Installing smoke filters and electric ovens in the Central Kitchen

of the PRC Dongguan Plant to reduce smoke pollution

— Implementing and following policies to recycle packing pallets
and carton boxes and reuse transit carton boxes to reduce

packing material usage

— Implementing recycling programs to reduce paper-based waste

— Implementing and following policies to use environmentally-

friendly raw materials at the product design stage
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ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES

We have adopted a variety of practices and guidelines to continually
improve our energy efficiency in production. Meanwhile, we remain
committed to finding new ways to reduce energy consumption by
improving the performance of machinery and infrastructure.

SUGA's main usage of energy is for electricity at our facilities and fuel
consumption by our vehicle fleet. We manage direct and/or indirect
energy consumption by monitoring monthly energy consumption,
and educate employees about energy saving and environmentally-
friendly concepts and practices. Water consumption is not a materially
important area for SUGA. Much of our water consumption is for
cleaning and sanitation at the Dongguan Plant Dormitory, as well as
use at the Dongguan Plant Central Canteen. Nevertheless, we have
implemented practices and guidelines to manage water consumption
at a reasonable level.

Our efforts in this direction include:

— Implementing a Solar Panel System at the Dongguan Plant in
April 2017 to generate green energy and reduce electricity
consumption

—  Modernising our air-conditioning system and production
machinery to save energy

— Implementing guidelines and creating slogans and posters to
educate employees about energy saving and environmentally-
friendly concepts

— Installing sensors on water taps in the Dongguan Plant to reduce
water usage

— Implementing paperless e-procurement and e-production and
material planning systems to reduce paper consumption
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— Implementing a paperless office system for business operation
to reduce paper consumption

—  Policy to reduce usage of packing materials for finished goods
at the product design stage

—  Implementing procedures to reduce packing materials in the
production process

—  Rubbish separation for recycling resources

ASPECT A3: IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The nature of our industry does not have a serious impact
on environmental and natural resources. However, to promote
environmental awareness among our employees, SUGA has created
guidelines, slogans and posters to educate employees about energy
saving and environmentally-friendly concepts. We encourage our

employees to live a green life.

As for our operations, we have stringent measures in place to reduce
greenhouse gases and control emissions of pollutants. We have also
implemented measures to reduce production of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.

SUGA's activities and operations have had no significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources during the financial
year ended 31 Mar 2017.

REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECTS

Corporate Social Responsibility

As one of Hong Kong's leading electronics total solutions providers,
fulfilling our corporate social responsibility is one of our objectives.
SUGA is committed to operating in a manner that is economically,
socially and environmentally sustainable. We have put in place
policies, practices, procedures, guidelines and measures to achieve our
corporate social responsibility objectives in environmental and social
aspects.
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SUGA has a mission of benefiting society through participating
in community activities and donations. SUGA’'s corporate social
responsibility has a core value to benefit society and protect the
environment. We are committed to conducting business in a manner
that respects society and the environment. Our environmental and
social responsibility practices positively contribute to the community
and protect the environment through donations, volunteer works
and environmentally-friendly practices. For cleaner production, SUGA
has adopted energy conservation measures to reduce environmental
risks and liabilities. We also work to raise awareness and involvement
in environmental protection among our employees at all levels and
always encourage them to engage in green activities with their
families. In the future, SUGA intends to continue ongoing efforts to
fulfil our commitment to environmental protection as well as support
sustainable development at the local and global level. We believe
that through our efforts in environmental protection and community
activities we can make our world a better place to live in.

ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT

SUGA employs around 1,800 employees in Hong Kong and PRC.
We are committed to providing a rewarding work environment
for our employees that encourages collaboration and offers them
opportunities to learn, grow and succeed at work. The commitment
is incorporated into our Human Resources policies, practices and the
Employee Handbook.

Recruiting and retaining competent employees is vital to our success
and we aim to attract, motivate and retain the best people for
our business operations. To achieve this, we provide a competitive
employment package consisting of monetary and non-monetary
rewards for our employees. Our comprehensive reward system offers a
discretionary incentive bonus, sales commissions, share options, group
medical insurance protection, and retirement protection. Our employer
contribution for the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) is better than
the legal requirement and we offer additional holidays for employee’s
well-being.

At the same time, we help our employees pursue a work-life balance
and live a healthy and fulfilling life. Our Human Resources Department
organises different social, sports and recreation activities, including
local tours, barbeques, dinner gatherings and sports competitions to
enrich our employees’ lives.
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We treat all employees and job applicants fairly and equally regardless HFIAFRFEMBFHEEES LB E @ &
of their gender, sexual orientation, marital status, race, colour, IR~ EEE BRI - BIE - EG -
nationality, religion, age or disability. We have zero tolerance of #&  R# - T EE - HRMBEEEWHEAAER

harassment and discrimination of any form. BREREDNERRAREE -
Total Employees Headcount as at 31 March 2017 N-ZF—tEF=H=+—HHEEHE
AE
Headcount
By Gender % 1 Bl AE
Female Z 1,088
Male 5% 755
Total # 2 1,843
Headcount
By Rank R R A
Senior = E 74
Staff 81T 428
Worker TA 1,341
Total 18 1,843
By Gender By Rank
2 1 Bl % Bk 4%
H Senior
B Female =5/E
2t m Staff
® Male 73% 8T
St Worker
TA
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Employee Communication
Promoting a corporate culture of open communication is one of the
keys to sustaining our success.

We encourage employees at all levels to express their views and
make suggestions through a variety of channels, including face-to-
face meetings, gatherings with management, a quarterly employee
satisfaction survey and more. Our intranet and notice board keeps
employees up-to-date on company news across the Group. In addition,
we have provided a suggestion box for employees to submit advice
or inform the management about problems.

We provide workers overtime pay for working time beyond regular
working hours. SUGA complies with all relevant Hong Kong and
PRC laws and regulations that deal with working hours, rest periods
and overtime pay. In addition we strive to resolve any labour-related

matters through dialogue and resolutions with relevant employees.

Employee Welfare and Working Conditions

We operate a canteen and a dormitory at our Dongguan Plant,
which provides employees with reasonably-priced meals and lodging.
Also we operate a Clubhouse and other recreational facilities at the
Dongguan Plant, including a gym, Karaoke and theatre for employees
for entertainment during their leisure time.

Our Service Excellence Award and Long Service Awards recognise the
outstanding contributions, commitment and loyalty of our employees.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have significantly affected
the Group relating to employment, occupational health or labour
standards.
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ASPECT B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

As a company caring for our employees, we are committed to
maintaining a healthy and safe work environment in compliance
with all relevant Hong Kong and PRC laws and regulations. We have
included guidelines in the Dongguan Plant Employee Handbook and
posted Hong Kong Labour Department Occupational Health and Safety
Guidelines on the Hong Kong Notice Board to educate employees
about Occupational Safety and Health concepts. In addition, we have
employed an Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Officer in the
Dongguan Plant to handle safety measures, aiming to reduce industrial
accidents and injuries. During the year, there was no serious work-
related injury throughout the Group’s operations.

ASPECT B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We consider the professional growth of our employees to be one of
the keys to sustainable business growth. We continue to promote
a learning culture and offer career development and training
programmes to all levels of employees to ensure they are well-
equipped to perform their duties through paying or subsidising them
to attend seminars, forums or exhibitions. In addition, we have a
Company Training Sponsorship Scheme to encourage our employees
to enroll in further education to support their career development.
With prior approval from the Group, course and examination fees for
further education may be subsidised or reimbursed upon attainment
of successful academic qualifications.

As for newly recruited employees, we have a training programme in
place, including fundamental and on-the-job training to ensure they

can properly perform their duties.

During the year, we have provided 44,005 hours of training to our
employees.
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ASPECT B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

We are committed to protecting human rights. We comply with all
relevant Hong Kong and PRC laws and regulations concerning human
rights. We have a zero-tolerance policy towards the use of forced
labour and child labour in our business operations. We require our
vendors to accept and observe our Supplier Code of Conduct, which
forbids forced and child labour. We will terminate a vendor immediately
if it is found to be employing forced or child labour.

ASPECT B5: POLICIES ON MANAGING ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL RISK IN OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

We have business relationships with suppliers all around the globe
that provide us with a wide variety of raw materials, equipment and
services. The Group has set up policies and procedures to manage its
supply chain for fulfillment of its corporate social responsibilities and
to provide good quality products to customers. It also has in place a
complete supplier quality management mechanism to control quality
accreditation, inspection and factory supervision of products.

In order to manage environmental and social risk, the Group’s
Dongguan Plant has incorporated the ISO 9001:2008, ISO
14001:2004, QC 080000:2005, ISO/TS 16949:2009 and
ISO13485:2003 accredited procedures in supply chain management.
The supply chain policy has specific supplier requirements on business
ethics, quality standards and public responsibilities for the process
of supplier approval, evaluation, strategic supplier development and
materials procurement.

Moreover, the Group has achieved GPMS (Green Product Management
RoHS
and WEEE (Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directives)

System), (Restriction of Hazardous Substance Directives)
compliance certifications and complies with REACH (Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals) standards for
our products. Furthermore, we conduct RoHS testing for incoming raw
materials to ensure they are free of hazardous substances.

In the future, SUGA will continue to fulfil its commitment to
environmental protection and also support sustainable development
at both the local and global level.
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Supply Chain Management Practices

SUGA has well-established procedures for supplier selection and
evaluation. New suppliers are required to undergo an evaluation
process which considers their technical capability, quality and
sustainability performance and only suppliers thus qualified can be
included in our Approved Vendor List. For existing suppliers, periodic
verification processes and site audits are performed to ensure they
comply with the Group’s Supply Chain Policy. A vendor unable to
comply with our supply chain requirements is deleted from our
Approved Vendors List and not be permitted to provide us with raw
materials or services.

ASPECT B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has established policies and practices to ensure its
The
management is responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and

operations comply with applicable laws and regulations.
practices ensuring they are in line with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, and that those policies and practices are regularly
reviewed for adequacy. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought as necessary to the attention of the relevant
employees and operating units. In addition, we have implemented
practices to fulfill product safety requirements at the product
design stage. The Group has also established a policy to obtain any
certification required to ensure the finished goods are environmentally
friendly, healthy and safe. In addition, the Group is committed to
ensuring that our products comply with relevant laws and regulations

of the countries where these products are sold.

We have established MES (Manufacturing Execution Systems) to
enhance the product quality management and product traceability.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that has had a significant impact
concerning its product responsibility.

Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped Subject to Recalls
for Safety and Health Reasons

No products have been sold or shipped which were subject to recall
for safety and health reasons during this financial year.
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Customer Complaint Policy

The Group has established a Customer Complaint Policy to ensure that
customer complaints are handled quickly and efficiently. The policy
includes a provision for the concerned parties to work together to find
the reasons for any defects and responsibilities and then re-work the
rejected finished goods. At the same time, we regularly send a survey
to customers to collect their opinions.

Intellectual Property Policy & Customer Data Protection and
Privacy Policies

The Group has a strict policy in place to sign a formal Non-Disclosure
Agreement to protect customers’ intellectual property (IP). Also, the
Group has applied for intellectual property rights certification for our
own products and designs, thus our standard practice is not to infringe
on other parties’ IP rights.

Quality Assurance Procedures and Recall Procedures

The Group has established quality assurance procedures to ensure that
incoming raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods meet
the products’ quality specifications and comply with environmentally-
friendly, health and safety requirements. At the same time the Group
has established recall procedures to handle recalled products.

ASPECT B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

SUGA is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. We have a zero-tolerance policy regarding bribery and
corruption in any form or at any level in association with any aspect
of the Group’s activities. Our Employee Code of Conduct is specified
in the SUGA Employee Handbook which clearly states that SUGA shall
not tolerate any illegal or unethical acts. Any employee in violation
of the Code of Conduct will be appropriately disciplined, including
termination of employment in serious cases.
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Our Code of Conduct includes the terms for compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, as well as provisions for Soliciting
Advantages, Accepting Advantages, Offering Advantages, Accepting
Entertainment, Use of Proprietary Information, Confidentiality,
Handling of Conflict of Interest, Misuse of the Group’s Assets
and Resources, Loans and Outside Employment which are also in
compliance with the Hong Kong Anti-Corruption Ordinance. Our
employees are regularly advised of relevant policies and guidelines,
including any updates or revisions. In addition, we regularly arrange
for the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption to
hold seminars to educate our employees about anti-corruption laws

and concepts.

The Group was not aware of any breach of laws and regulations that
have had a significant impact on its business relating to bribery.

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

SUGA is committed to participating in volunteer activities and making
charitable donations to benefit society. In fulfilling our CSR mission,
our employees have participated in various community activities and
made donations during this financial year. SUGA remains committed to
participate in volunteer works and continuously contribute donations
in the future. In addition to activities aimed at bettering society, more
recently SUGA has extended its efforts to worthwhile humane causes
by donating both money and pet food to selected PRC private animal
shelters and kennels for stray cats and dogs.

We have participated in the following community activities and have
been accredited awards or certifications during this financial year.
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Organizer/Beneficiary
EWEM TR

The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

ERMEREHSE

Hong Kong Productivity Council
(HKPC)

EBREENRER

Agency for Volunteer Service

EBRIERER

Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council (HKPC)

ERERAREERESR
EREENRER

Award/Recognition

BRIE iR

5 Years+ Caring Company logo

SHFPlus [ R REBEIE]ERE

n 1 -
st tay Tt Worg Koy Courcl of Sccial Serec
ol EHREFEE

G

Drive for Corporate Citizenship

RN RGBS

The 7th Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Logo
— Enterprise Category

FIEEBMULEARBHER
— a7

Hong Kong Community Volunteers

2016 (Corporate member)

— The Highest Participation Award
— Silver Award, Achieved 521
Service Hours

20065 B TE(hEEE
— E—:Rﬁ AR B
R 7% /)N B

)
852118

“Happiness-at-work Promotional
Scheme”
— “Happy Company” 2017 Label

[FA/0 TVERT 4 E T2
— 2017[AOD T JER

HAPDY
compANy
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RE ) HEREBRE

Organizer/Beneficiary

EMWEMFmA

Wofoo Social Enterprises and the

Water Supply Department
MELELERKEE

The Samaritan Befrienders
Hong Kong

ERRBANTZBHLARS

Agency for Volunteer Service

EBXIERER

Organizer/Beneficiary

EMWEMFRA

The Community Chest of Hong
Kong

EBRARS

The Community Chest of Hong
Kong

EBABS

Event

)

Hong Kong Water Race 2016
& B KR EEM2016

“From Darkness to Sunrise” City
Orienteering Competition 2016

[RRALRAIESHHE R LE
2016

AVS Charity Walk and Run for
Volunteering 2016

AVSETTH % 12016

Other Activities
HiaEE

Mooncakes for Charity

Nzs A B

Love Teeth Day 2016/2017
Nz B 7 H2016/2017
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Organizer/Beneficiary Donation & Sponsorship
EWEMEFRmA BEREE
World Vision Hong Kong Child Sponsorship
EBHtRERE Bh&EREAE
Design for Change Hong Kong Donation of 5th DFC School ‘.0 BD0 -
. L Challenge 2016 S
ERABRCHHE &Nt tans 2016
BEDFCERERIZTTHHEE2016 o
R il
-

Outward Bound Hong Kong BOCHK Outward Bound Corporate

Challenge 2016
ERIIRIKER
FIREF B INE F L2016

Animal shelters and kennels for Sponsorship and donation of pet

stray cats and dogs food
TR SR 58 X JEE 7 35 ) W P EYLBEYEDRE
Vocational Training Council o Outstanding Industrial
" Attachment Scholarships
BEIHR 2016/2017
BRECXEERESR
2016/2017

o VTC Design Education Fund ‘
2016/2017, VTC )' i U ” | | [ |

VTCER EH B £ £2016/2017
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RE ) HEREBRE

Organizer/Beneficiary
EWEM EFmA

The Chinese University of Hong
Kong

EREHPNKRE

The Hong Kong Management

Association

EREEEXENHS

Creative Learning Association

AIREES

Yan Oi Tong
—EE

Donation & Sponsorship
BEREER

Suga International Holdings Limited
Scholarships

EEEREERES

Sponsored the “48th Distinguished

Salesperson Award Presentation
Ceremony”

Ejﬁﬂr%sﬁﬁiﬁmﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
2

Creative Competition

BIELE

Yan Oi Tong Annual Charity Ball

CEERFEASERS
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_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Suga International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Suga International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 93 to 211, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2017;
o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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R
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. We considered “Impairment
of inventories” as key audit matter that was addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on the matter.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of inventories

19
accounting estimates and judgments”

Refer to note “Inventories” and note 4 “Critical
to the consolidated

financial statements

At 31 March 2017, the Group held net inventories of
HK$196,149,000.
cost and net realisable value (“NRV”) in the consolidated

Inventories are stated at the lower of

financial statements. The cost of inventories may not be
recoverable if those inventories are aged and damaged,
or become obsolete, or if their selling prices have been
declined.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory &
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual

inventory items.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less selling expenses, taking
into account historical experience of selling products of
similar nature and expectation of future sales based on
current market condition.

Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long aged
inventories. It also conducted periodic review on inventory
obsolescence, including performance of periodic inventory
counts and review of holding period for individual inventory
items.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance to the financial position of the Group, and the
significant judgment and estimates involved in determining
the provision for impairment of inventories.

FARETEE

FERE
FER2HEAMBERERWEI19[FE | MM 4RI 8 & 5 5t
I o

EEBR T —tF=ZA=+—HB# 5 7FE4196,149,000
B BEDNEKALEAFBFEIREENNER - WEFEE
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DN
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TR 4 o B L TR o

EEERFEFHURHEFEERBERBREI L A5
RHREFEIFLEERE ERENERNFTERTER
ETEREL  BRTHETFERANRENENFER
BNFAER -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We understood and validated the control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures in
estimating the NRV of the inventories and conducting

periodic review on inventory obsolescence.

We observed management’s inventory counts to identify
whether there is any damaged or obsolete inventories.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing :
profile of individual inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement correspondences and invoices.

We tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage or
sales of selected inventory items, obtained through the K
usage or sales reports subsequent to the year end as a
basis to identify inventory obsolescence. Where there are no
subsequent usage or sales of the respective items after the
year end, we discussed with management its assessment on
estimated future utilisation, corroborating explanations with
the inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of the
relevant finished goods by using our industry knowledge.

We also tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected
inventory items, by comparing the selling price subsequent
to the year end, against the carrying values of these
individual finished goods. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective finished goods after the year end,
we discussed with management as to the realisable value of
the products, corroborating explanations with the inventory
ageing, sales orders, historical margins, and current market
conditions by using our industry knowledge and external
market analysis, as appropriate.

We consider the provision for obsolete or slow moving

inventories as at 31 March 2017 was supportable by the
available evidences.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

or the override of

intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
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to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Po Wah, Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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CONS.OLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEAERBR

As at 31/March 2017 K=—T—+&=F=+—§

31 March 31 March
2017 2016
—E-t&E ~—T-KF
=A=+-8 =ZA=+-H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E TFH#T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RENEE
Land use rights &+ Mot A 6 50,484 53,291
Property, plant and equipment Y BERFZE 7 276,081 263,236
Investment property "EY 8 10,200 10,000
Intangible assets EEEE 9 986 7,251
Goodwill kS 10 3,949 3,949
Interests in associates REEE RN 2w 12 3,804 3,876
Deferred income tax assets BELEFTSTHEE 23 1,086 323
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEETBHEE 14 16,439 16,678
Bond investment BEHIRE 15 7,711 7,71
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERZABRZ
profit or loss s EE 17 4,838 —
Other non-current receivables H b IE 7% B FE W SR IE 18 — 4,118
375,578 370,433
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 19 196,149 167,361
Trade and other receivables FE U E 5 BR 5 N Eo A e W FRIE 18 231,784 201,177
Loan receivable B E W FRIE 20 6,496 12,960
Income tax recoverable A Y [E] BT 15 591 3,859
Amount due from an associate JE W — A1 B & A B R I8 12 3,250 431
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEeEEY 21 223,867 225,027
662,137 610,815
Total assets EEHE 1,037,715 981,248
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 6,678 10,932
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEmEMRAE 23 453 1,443
7131 12,375
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEAERBR

As at 31"March 2017 K-—F—+&=F=+—§

31 March 31 March
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
=A=+—H =A=+—8H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T#&IT FAT
Current liabilities i =R
Trade and other payables FE B 5 8RR K H th JE 15 5B 24 245,013 185,468
Income tax payable FEFTIS B 6,762 12,931
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 108,337 101,197
Derivative financial instruments TESmIT A 16 — 1,946
360,112 301,542
Total liabilities BfE4H 367,243 313,917
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to the owners of the FERARRHEBALZ
Company T 7
Share capital f% 7 25 28,100 27,712
Other reserves H th 7 1 27 95,063 113,246
Retained earnings REB AT 27 547,050 526,792
670,213 667,750
Non-controlling interests FE 1 I 14 2 259 (419)
Total equity gk 670,472 667,331
Total equity and liabilities EzRkaEESH 1,037,715 981,248

FRE2NBENGEVBERRENRZZE—LF AN
B-+thBEEsgitE THTIEEAER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 211 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2017 and were signed

on its behalf by: &
Ng Chi Ho Ma Fung On
REX BE=
Director Director
EF EE

The notes on pages 100 to 211 are an integral part of these F100E21MNBE M AGAMIBEHRER—LH °

consolidated financial statements.
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CONS.OLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e mER

For the yeér ended 31 March 2017 B#ZE=—F—+F=A=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—E—tE =—ZT—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz THET FE T
Revenue Wz 28 1,414,103 1,368,100
Cost of sales 85 & A AR 29 (1,190,503) (1,167,281)
Gross profit ERH 223,600 200,819
Distribution and selling expenses DHRIEEE A 29 (42,237) (28,367)
General and administrative expenses —RERTHREREEZR 29 (106,848) (102,643)
Other income H fib Y A 30 665 2,183
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith(F48), W zs  F5E 31 (13,508) 16,662
Operating profit mEHR 61,672 88,654
Finance income & WA 32 7,775 3,561
Finance costs B & R A 32 (4,579) (2,996)
Finance income — net BEWA — F5 32 3,196 565
Share of losses of associates FE(L B & AR EE 12 (1,253) (1,312)
Profit before income tax BR AT 1S % A& A 63,615 87,907
Income tax expense TS x 33 (3,572) (8,596)
Profit for the year F it F 60,043 79,311
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EBRNUTAL
wm Al (EE)

Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE? F =N 61,745 80,038
Non-controlling interests FE 15 I M fE = (1,702) (727)
60,043 79,311

Earnings per share for profit attributable FARREHEAE A FEL =T

to the owners of the Company #) & i & A
during the year

— Basic (HK cents) — EARCEA) 34 22.12 28.94
— Diluted (HK cents) — 5 OB ) 34 22.04 28.89

The notes on pages 100 to 211 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE—F—+#=H=—+—F1 F&

2017 2016
—T—tF =—ZT—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % THET FHET
Profit for the year R i Tl 60,043 79,311
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hit2m(EHE) WA
Items that may be reclassified to Al E P E B B -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation 2 & & 5 i B A & B 2 &
of foreign subsidiaries PE W =58 (27,559) (18,216)
Release of exchange reserve upon REUE st — BB A 7
deregistration of a subsidiary 7 B B 5 (1 — (11,343)
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AHEETBEEZATE
financial assets (E518) Wz (239) 3,320
Other comprehensive loss for the year FAEMEEEIR (27,798) (26,239)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2E I A\ 484 32,245 53,072
Profit attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company KRG HEB A 33,947 53,799
Non-controlling interests FE 2 ) 1 HE (1,702) (727)
32,245 53,072

The notes on pages 100 to 211 are an integral part of these S100E211BE 2 M AEAM KRR —3H o
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEHERBER

For the yeér ended 31 March 2017 B#ZE=—F—+F=A=+—HIFZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EATHBANES
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
I
BE HitttitE KRZEH Wi Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAT FAT T8 T
Balance at 1 April 2015 R-B-HAEMA—BHZEH 27,371 131,091 488,278 (1,524) 645,216
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(ER) — — 80,038 (727) 79,311
Exchange difference arising on MEBINGE AR FTEE
translation of foreign subsidiaries & 5 E = (18,216) — — (18,216)
Release of exchange reserve upon NS e NG
deregistration of a subsidiary BHE N EE — (11,343) — — (11,343)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AREENBEE 2 A FERE
financial assets — 3,320 — — 3,320
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2T (E518), W\ & — (26,239) 80,038 (727) 53,072
Transactions with owners: HBEAAZENZS:
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon RAOEEREREETRNHZ
exercise of options FT18 518 341 6,319 — — 6,660
Value of employee services EERKZEE — 4,134 — — 4,134
Options lapsed R EIRE = (37) 37 — —
Contribution from minority SHRRELE
shareholders — — — 960 960
Change in ownership interests in TEHKREEFENNE QR
subsidiaries without change of BREEERE
control — (2,022) — 872 (1,150)
Dividends paid BENKRE — — (41,561) — (41,561)
Balance at 31 March 2016 NR-E—-REZA=Z+—-HZ& 27,712 113,246 526,792 (419) 667,331
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(ER) — — 61,745 (1,702) 60,043
Exchange difference arising on BERIINNBRRFTEE
translation of foreign subsidiaries & 5 Z — (27,559) — — (27,559)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AEHHENBEEZ
financial assets NTEEYR = — (239) — — (239)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2T (E518), W N @ — (27,798) 61,745 (1,702) 32,245
Transactions with owners: HBEAAZENZS:
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon RAOFEBEREREETRNZ
exercise of options FT18 5B 388 8,113 — — 8,501
Value of employee services EERBKZEE — 1,601 — — 1,601
Options lapsed R EIRE = (99) 99 — -
Contribution from minority SHRELE
shareholders — — — 2,380 2,380
Dividends paid B E = = (41,586) = (41,586)
Balance at 31 March 2017 R-ZF—tE=A=+—-HZH&HH 28,100 95,063 547,050 259 670,472
The notes on pages 100 to 211 are an integral part of these HI00E2NEZHER/GEETBHRER & -

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE—F—+#=H=—+—F1 F&

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % TFHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities HEEBZHERE
Cash generated from operations REEBREE 2R E 38 108,015 139,049
Interest paid 21 F & (4,832) (3,305)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBFEH (7,024) (4,457)
Mainland China corporate income tax paid 1 5 B8 A 3 7> 2 AR 18 %% (680) (255)
Net cash generated from operating activities & &% B EE 2R & F58 95,479 131,032
Cash flows from investing activities BEEHZHRERE
Additions of property, plant and equipment RNE ¥ % BB & & (56,479) (43,506)
Additions of investment property REREME — (300)
Deposits paid for property, plant and W BELREZEZ
equipment Bt — (4,118)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEWE - MENRE 2
and equipment Ffr 18 5018 38 205 136
Increase in interests in associates Rt R A 2 HE =10 (1,181) (5,188)
Increase in amount due from an associate  J&E Y — & B 48 A &) 2% 18 12 A0 (2,819) —
Repayment of loan receivable BEERER 6,464 —
Interest received 2 W F B 7,775 3,561
Payment for product development cost XAV EE o K AR — (589)
Payment for settlement of derivative financial % & $74 ¢ g T A&
instruments (2,397) —
Purchase of financial assets carried at fair HEEZRAFEFAEBREZ
value through profit or loss MBEE (4,951) =
Net cash used in investing activities KEERBMACZRS F58 (53,383) (50,004)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HERERER

For the yeér ended 31 March 2017 B#ZE=—F—+F=A=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—EF—tFE =—ZZ—KF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T#IT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities RETHMEEERE

Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMERE 316,850 247,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITESR (313,964) (235,659)
Proceeds from shares issued BT Z ISR A 8,501 6,660

Contribution from/(consideration paid) to ~ JE#EHI S SN E B
non-controlling interests (Fr i RE) 2,380 (1,150)
Dividends paid BT & (41,586) (41,561)
Net cash used in financing activities REEHFAZEESFE (27.819) (24,710)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R & NI & % &Y %5 14,277 56,318
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates [ 3 % &) 27 £ (15,437) (8,280)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year IR & IR & EEY  F 41 225,027 176,989
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year HekBReEEY K 223,867 225,027

The notes on pages 100 to 211 are an integral part of these SF100E2NA ZMERGAMBHRER —#D -
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R

100

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
September 2001. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
are principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sales of electronic products and other
products. The Group has operations mainly in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Macao.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These financial statements are presented in HK dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial assets,
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, and investment property which are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates. It also

its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@

interpretations are mandatory for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2016
and have been adopted in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EF G ENFEIRUSETR)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)

BEREHEAEI6RE RE B gL
2£385% ({5 7] &)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

EA G EAE27H (BETA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

8B 1% s R FE 1057
EAEUBHREERE125% K
BA G ERAF285 (BFTA)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

EBP B HREERENR (BT AR

HKFRS 14

BB B HEER 1458

Annual improvements project

FEWERAB

The adoption of above new and amended standards
and interpretations has no material effect on the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

requires management to exercise

The following new and amended standards and

2 EEEBEMEGE)
RREEE)
BREFECESUBREEARR 2
MERABEERE THRETHE
o BEREREAANSESTER
RN ZEVE HE - PR E A BT
BAEHEER  KERAMBERE
BERNBXRMGHE - HEE
B 524 o

2.1

#E] KRBT R A Z LATMEET
RZT—RFOMA—HkZ®&
FA 46 2 7 58 B B B4R X 58 I A
LU IARYIN R R IR
REERMN -

Disclosure initiative

Bt A

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation

WERBHEZAIRENEZRB

Equity method in separate financial statements
REBZ M BHRERA 2 ERE

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

i

REER

EREAEARNZOIINMER

\

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations
WENREEXEBESE et RE

Regulatory deferred accounts

EERELRE

Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle

TR CHFE_T-MERAMIFESE
BRAR L st 3 AT R AR RT A )

RRHRRAREZEEMB
BRI BEATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS SR B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new and amended standards and (b)
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016 and
have not been early adopted by the Group:

EESTSTHRBEGR

21 EREE(E)

ATl RRETERI 2B
ERMER TR

B R 18 2 B B JE R R AR 2
HANE B30 52 2 3R

FHA—

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHHZE
M2 ETABEEN

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
BB EAFETR (BFTA)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
BB ERF125% (BFA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BB M5 WS R F 25 (B FT

)
HKFRS 9
BAMGRERAFIH
HKFRS 15
BAEMGHREEASI55H
HKFRS 16

BB ELERIFE165

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

AP B HRE LR FE105 &
BB BT EAFE285%
CEHEN)

None of the above new standards and amendments
is expected to have a significant effect on the

Statement of cashflows

REamER

Income taxes

PTG

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

UBRDBERONRRIZNDBRAE

Financial instruments

TRIA

Revenue from contracts with customers
KEBEFELHZWA

Leases

HE

Sale or contribution of assets between an

investor and its associate or joint venture

REEHRABERAXNBERAZH
ZEEREIIEA

1 January 2017

—E—+¥—HA—H
1 January 2017
—E—tF—-H—H

1 January 2017

—E—+H%—HF—H

1 January 2018

—T-\¥—HA—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—-H—H
1 January 2019
—E-N¥—H—H

To be determined

fFE

B bt 35T 22 Al R 2 BT TR S
HBAKENGEAMBHRAEE

consolidated financial statements of the Group, A E WUATEIERRI

except for the followings:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 45 R B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed
assessment of the classification and measurement of
financial assets, the financial assets currently held by

the Group include:

o debt instruments currently classified as loans
and receivables which would likely continue to
be measured at amortised cost;

o equity instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale financial assets for which a
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) election is available; and

o equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss which would likely
continue to be measured on the same basis

under HKFRS 9.

The Group does not expect the new guidance to
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.

2

ERTBREE (&)

21 EREE(E)

(b)

AT #ra] R R 7] £ A K& @2
BEBEMER_ZT—XR"FMEA
— AR BRFEEERE
M BEAREEYN EREFRA
(&)

BB B R EERBIF
[ TR/

SR ERERHBUHE
ENERBENSE FER
HOHRER - R B EESIET
8 m & At AR A R R E R
= o

BEASEBHAEUKEE
Mo ANt EETFMTE
AEBBEBRFENTBEER
1

. BRIDBERERKENK
TX IR T B HE AR TR H X
AEENBEBIA:

. BRI B A &M%
BEEMEDmTA HE
BRAFETLAEMEZE
WAEE: R

AR FELAESR
A] Bt M B 1R BB M S
R ERIE TR
RAENRARE -

H)ﬂiﬂ%qm

AEBEESFIESITEHEY
BEENDRBRFERERT
@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SR B

2

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

For financial liabilities there are two classification
categories: amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss. Where non-derivative financial
liabilities are designated at fair value through profit
or loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes
in the liability’s own credit risk are recognised in
other comprehensive income, unless such changes
in fair value would create an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, in which case, all fair value
movements are recognised in profit or loss. There
is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss. For financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivative
financial liabilities), all changes in fair value are

presented in profit or loss.

The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and have not been changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (“ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses
as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 *“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”,
lease receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. While the Group has
not yet undertaken a detailed assessment of how
its impairment provisions would be affected by the
new model, it may result in an earlier recognition of
credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based on
the transitional provisions in the completed HKFRS
9, early adoption in phases was only permitted
for annual reporting periods beginning before 1
February 2015. After that date, the new rules must
be adopted in their entirety. The Group does not
intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R

2

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group's financial
statements and has identified the following areas
that are likely to be affected:

o revenue from service — the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification
of separate performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the recognition of
revenue;

o accounting for certain costs incurred in

fulfilling a contract — certain costs which are

currently expensed may need to be recognised
as an asset under HKFRS 15; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with

customers” (Continued)

° rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right
to recover the goods from the customer and
the refund obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the
impact of the new rules on the Group's financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

HKFRS 15 is
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this

mandatory for financial years
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SR B

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2016
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$4,626,000 (Note 39). However,
the Group has not yet determined to what extent
these commitments will result in the recognition of
an asset and a liability for future payments and how
this will affect the Group’s profit and classification
of cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any

amount of any non-controlling interest
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net asset acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between the fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary

is recorded in equity.

Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity. When the
Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period

investments

the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50%
associates are accounted for using the equity

of the voting rights. Investments in
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
income is

recognised in other comprehensive

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17

2

EESTSTHRBEGR)

22 ZRERE(E)
(b) BIBF#HFZE)

Wik BB E K S A
NAMEZEW A LR HE
BY P HREROREREER
BEAMBERERPRILE AT
FEERERE)NEEE -
A AH B AR 2 REE

BRI,

(c) BEEZT

BERREAREHEFEER
FEOIMEZFENES &
F B 20% £50% 18 EREH
PRt o REEE RF ZIREIARE
SmAEAR e RBEDE L
BRI A ATER - MAREE
WAL NSO D A RIRE & &
(RS- W G A= R Y=k =

@ ARBRBER

BREBERCANNEE - &
WhEk = AR HAEERER -
B & X ) B AN B AN A R R 1 B
EBARIAIHBEERAEBENA
FEFENEAZEERSRE

=

AN B X A O T B R R 2R
HIREBIDREERTZE
BRI < i £ E A 2w
AFHERNBEESHHOBEER

@m(MEE) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an

associate’ in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. The
amounts reported by associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interests in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors collectively who make

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated

at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are

recognized in other comprehensive

income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation,or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17

2

EESTSTHRBEGR)

24 HVERIBRE ()

(d)

HEBNIEERBAHE
REEBINEHANLESE
RBINEB 2 2B EERS R
REH-HWNBRAR(REE
INRIG) 2RI HE - FR
REHEEER(BREBINE
BIZHREZEREZHE =X
FhAREH-—RBEQE (R
REBNEB)CERFENLZ
HER - LR EE ARMHEZ
X MR AERZ P E
REBREH O BRER -

BRY TN EHEBREHIE
RE(BIEBINERE) 2 I #E
ZEOHE  RFTELEREZ
FEAE LL DI BB 0 B 37 51 A\ FE 2 5
MRERTERERER - 5t
PrEEM 2By HE (K EE
ENFRAELETHNES
BERNBROIT TN EREER
EBAFENIARESE) -
% RETE N Z8 2 BIE IR

ABEHOBEERR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2

(CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases and all
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance leases commence
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
of other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance leases 38-48 years

Buildings 35-48 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

2

ERTBREE (&)

25 Y% -BERRE

DHRSRENE  HE T MESD
ReaEMLYE - BEER f%?;zJ_
ERABRATER R RERERE
AR - BELRABEREERER
HEREERAX -

EHIBEHABZ RARLENR
MARNEE - LA&IEHE)Z$ %’J—J
FAEE HEKATELAERE
ZEEESARARBYLEE(RER
BRME) - WK ZREE TS
HUHMER - PTE M EERRENX
ARELEZHBHEAREG S KRE
KRR -

DHESRMEMEZHEL AT
RS AERTE G 2B EN
DRESRENE 2 HE T 7 #5H
REMBEEZFERGAAERSF
HI LA B 420 20 B H B AR R BR 1B
LI

SEAMENREZ 38484
E L

BF 352484

HEMEEE 5Z104F

T 5 I 1 25 54F

L] 54F

BEZHNGREERTAFHERNS
REAEMARARMEER)

EEEBEEERAT 2016175% | 117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SR B

2~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

118

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use. This includes direct costs of construction as well
as interest expense capitalised during the period of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
will cease and the construction in progress is transferred
to appropriate categories within property, plant and
equipment when the construction activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Up to the date when an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property carried at fair value, the Group
depreciates the property and recognizes any impairment
losses that have occurred. Any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the revaluation is included in revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.6 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In such cases,
the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if
they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the consolidated income
statement as part of a valuation gain or loss in ‘other gains

— net’.

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period

of the land use rights.

2.8 Intangible assets
(a) Customer relationship

Contractual customer relationship acquired
a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relationship has a finite useful life and
is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the

customer relationship of five years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (Continued)

2.8

(b)

Product development

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique products controlled by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets when the following

criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the
software product so that it will be available
for use;

o Management intends to complete the product

and use or sell it;

o There is an ability to use or sell the product;

o It can be demonstrated how the product will

generate probable future economic benefits;
o Adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the product are available; and

o The expenditure attributable to the product

during its development can be reliably

measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)
(b) Product development (Continued)

Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a

subsequent period.

Development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which

does not exceed three years.

2.9 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified

net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an

expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

122

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life,
or intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables, amount due from an associate and
a joint venture, bond investment and cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheet (Notes

2.13 and 2.14).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12

months of the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and
nonmonetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognised only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can

be reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the separate consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.16 Trade and other payables

2.17

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.18 Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries and its associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution pension schemes for its employees.
The pension plans are funded by payments
from employees and by the Group. The Group's
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
expensed as incurred. The assets are held separately
from those of the Group and managed by related
independent professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant municipal and provincial governments based
on specified percentages of the relevant employees’
monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions to
these plans are expensed as incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

i) including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’'s share price);

ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

iii)  including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement for

employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.

2

EESTHRBEGR

2.20 & 8 & I (&)

(b)

B 1 1 5 8 B
AEEREUNEDRER UK
D RERE R 8 - RIFEZ
EFita - BERWEESNRE
DHERAS EfEm T A (HH)
MRE - EESBIRERTH
REME AR TS B R FEER A
FAX - BXHENBESE2ER
THENDFEEE:

) BREREMWSERBGHE
(PlEnERARE)

iy TEBEEMREMED
LRERBGREDIWA
e - HERRBFEM
BREEXBERHAZR
FEBNRE R

i) BRI 1R IR 5R I8 {5 1 (1
WA ERERE)NF

o,
=

FEMSRRIRB GG REE
ERENRBENMEHENR
R - AXBABEERBHEA
R BEARESNTEMA
FrE BB IR AR o Beoh
EREBRT - BEAEER
HEHMZ AR RS - B
H B HI 80 2 18 B 52 AR 75 R
MREA B B H 2 B A &Y
SAEHfh A e

EEEBEEERAT 2016175% | 131



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R

2

132

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investments in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Employee leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Other benefits
Other
are recorded as a liability and charged to the

directors’ and employees’ obligations
consolidated income statement when the Group is
contractually obliged or when there is a past practice

that has created a constructive obligation.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17

2

EESTSTHRBEGR)

2.20 & & & F (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

R &8 (&)
EBERSHR  NEBEKE
I 5 R I AR & & FT
HEFHEBNNESENMG
e HERGSRBRAURMGEE
BT (MA)NEE Y HES
fEHE R -

FEHEIT R ARBETH
B o W B RO P 15 SRR F0 BR (E
MERRBRZNANBEARAK
(H{E) MR E

ARARAASENEAREES
REBERATE 2 BRER
BREIE  FMERERBZA
FEDSERLHARZAFE
AR RNEEBEER SR
BARIERZ N - WHELA
s e

Bl

ESEZEHN
EERZFEREEHARS KR
REBBRYES TREERRE
R-AKECARENEEE
BRI RERBGAMERSF
BEEMRGRAZBFAE
fEH B -

BEEEZHBRRERRIKR
o5 T HERR o

Rty 15 7/
EASEEEHNAETIIBEMR
FEHELHEEEER - HM

ExhEEEHKEIKSAE
WREFAMERILR -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be

recognised as a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when specific criteria have been met. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

The Group manufactures and sells a range of electronic,
and other products in the wholesale market. Sales of
goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products, the amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entities.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.25 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), including upfront payment made for leasehold
land and land use rights, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.27 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.
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2~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.28 Financial guarantees

136

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities
for financial guarantee at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its net
liability regarding the financial guarantee with the amount
that would be required if the financial guarantee would
result in a present legal or constructive obligation.

If the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

2.29 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value on the date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedged
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had not designated any
derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in fair values
of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
being included in the consolidated income statement as
“other (losses)/gains, net”.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend and the
Company's directors in case of interim dividend.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group'’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i)  Foreign currency risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macao and its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars (“US$")
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not an entity’s functional currency. As Hong
Kong dollars are pegged against United States
dollars, management considers that the Group
is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management monitors foreign
currency exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. As at 31
March 2017, the Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMBRAMEERGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBEREEEGE
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMEEREE)
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, if both Hong Kong RZE—tEFRZZT—RF=
dollars and United States dollars had strengthened/ A=+—8 B TRETH
weakened by 5% against RMB with all other ARBEEFAE BE% M
variables held constant, the post-tax profit for FIEEMEAERTE  SFE2
each year would have changed mainly as a result Rt aENBISEMmES
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation ZERMEARESEERFINEG
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in HECEBEERBEESERE
foreign currencies of the relevant group companies, RERWEET
as follows:
2017 2016
—F—tF ZZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase B B 18 0 A O ),/ 38 hn
— Strengthen 5% — F{E5% (13,196) (7,988)
— Weakened 5% — BE5% 13,196 7,988
(ii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BLFERLFEFER

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the loan receivable
and cash and cash equivalents, details of which are
disclosed in Notes 20 and 21 respectively.

The Group's interest rate risk primarily relates to its
bank borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not hedge its interest
rate risk. However, management monitors the related
interest rate risk exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk exposure should
the need arise. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings are disclosed in Note 22.

The Group has no fixed interest rate borrowings.

Therefore it does not have any fair value interest rate
risk.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower than the prevailing interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$480,000 (2016: HK$468,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group'’s
financial assets are trade and other receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, bond investment,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, amount due from an associate and cash at
banks. The amounts of those assets stated in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is concentrated on a number
of major and long established customers. Trade
receivables from the top five customers accounted
for approximately 39% (2016: 31%) of the Group's
total trade receivables. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories and to limit
the amount of credit exposure to any individual
reviews the recoverable

customer. The Group

amount of each individual trade receivable at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group’s past experience in collection
of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. In order to minimise credit risk to the
Group, the Group has certain non-recourse factoring

arrangements with banks to cover the credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

The credit risk on bond investment and cash at banks
are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. Transactions in relation to
available-for-sale financial assets are only carried out
with financial institutions of high reputation. The
Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

For loans and receivables, amount due from an
associate and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, the Group regularly monitors the
financial positions of these companies/counterparties
to assess their recoverability. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Liquidity risk
Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents

liquidity risk management implies
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
manages its liquidity risk by controlling the level
of inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working capital

requirements and keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group'’s bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(iv)

3 WMEBEEEEGR)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBEMERE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REVELEEEE)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative TREBERASE ZIENTEMT
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial BERRFEEEZEZ 2ITE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based MBEEST  BRREERRE
on the remaining period at the balance sheet EARNEEHBRTHEE S A
date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative BB R - WMITEFBE
financial liabilities are included in the analysis if BZAENINBPEETHRESR
their contractual maturities are essential for an ERHEBEEZ  AlgRhafH
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The RABBITEMBERE - &N
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual i EeREREAARMEBERS
undiscounted cash flows. meE e
Between Between
On Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over 5
demand 1 year years years years Total
BREXR LPR—F —ZEZWME WMELE BEAERE &5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FAT FHET FH&T FH& T FET TET
31 March 2017 —E—tF
=A=+-8
Trade payables e & 5 BR3K — 193,454 — — — 193,454
Other payables and accruals b f& 5 3 IH &
& 5% — 51,559 — = — 51,559
Borrowings BE 104,071 4,299 3,012 3,717 — 115,099
104,071 249,312 3,012 3,717 — 360,112
31 March 2016 T RF
=A=+—~8
Trade payables FEH B 5 BR 3K — 149,764 — — — 149,764
Other payables and accruals — E#f & {4 ZXE &
EstEA — 35,704 — — — 35,704
Borrowings BE 95,000 6,430 4,440 6,717 — 112,587
Net settled derivative financial F4&EHfTA S/ T A
instruments — 1,946 — — — 1,946
95,000 193,844 4,440 6,717 — 300,001
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3 MEEEEEGR)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBRARERGE)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REVE 2B (E)
The table below summarises the maturity analysis TRV EE R EREBIERK
of the loans with a repayment on demand clause R TT B RABIE E R & AT
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in 2 mERERKREREDL 22
the loan agreements. The amounts included interest HE T - Al ERIEER
payments computed using contractual rates. As a BRINEGFTEZ N BN -
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts o tEemEaR LAl 2 HHE
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the DT AR [R5k ) B ] 6 [ AP 3
maturity analysis contained above. BZRE -
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, ARAEBE BB MRR  EE
the Directors do not consider that it is probable ERABRITBITEMNBEEX
that the banks will exercise their discretions to B E R AIBEIE TR - TF
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe HEZEERSREERDE
that such loans will be repaid in accordance with Frsl B E B NEA(E & -
the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.
Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject to a FEEHS>T — EBAEREKE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled EEEXHRITER @ BIEE
repayments: JE & RHE
Between Between
On Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 5

demand 1 year years years years Total

BREX LR—%F —EmE WMELE BEEAHF &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

FHET FH T FAT FHT FHET FHET
31 March 2017 —E—+H=A=+—H — 42,612 43,024 21,240 — 106,876
31 March 2016 —E—AF=A=+-—H — 37042 37,043 23,727 — 97812

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

3

3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMBRAMBEERGE)
Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEBEBEACEERRELRSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BB ELE  HhMAKRERK
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and B EEMASHER AT RS
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal ARERRTERGRE  UREERE
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. A e
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, REFHFABERGEE 5B g
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to FAREMBRRIRG 2R ESEE - BT
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce RGO EEEE  WBIEER °
debts.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing AEBEREEAGBHLERERER -
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by L ENEBEERERGEEEEAR
total equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. R RBE=GE -
2017 2016
—FE—t&E —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Total bank borrowings RITIEE B 115,015 112,129
Total equity w4 670,472 667,331
Gearing ratio BEBEBELX 17.2% 16.8%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFE{EME

3.3

The table below analyses the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 March 2017 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within
a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

TERRAEER_T—tF=A=
T BERAFEARZIMBEEER
BERAERFEMABZGEN A
ZHABBEREL 2D - ZF
BABRBRAFEERRBTIIR
AT = fEl & 4%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

(level 3).

See Note 8 for disclosures of the investment property that

is measured at fair value.

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March

Bt %5 b 1 (4F)
3.3 AF{EfHET ()

o IWIELARIRIE ™ 5 g (B A
ARAEZBABREEZE
EXBERABE=R) -

ERRATEFEZIREVWEZR

EE2BM S -

TREFARER-T—LFR=
T-RE= A=t —BERATFE

2017 and 2016: ELUBEERAEE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE—R -~ 11} E=H st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THET FH& T THE T
2017 —E—tF
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial Al E B E E
asset — — 16,439 16,439
Financial assets at fair value A FEZAEBZFZ
through profit or loss WIEEE — — 4,838 4,838
— — 21,277 21,277
2016 —E—x%
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial AHEETBHEEE
asset — — 16,678 16,678
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial PTEem I A
instruments — 1,946 — 1,946
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMBEEBEERGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AF{EMGE(E)
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during RERN F— ZR=FH2HEITE
the year. EeEE -
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRETE=ZRIANBE_ZT—
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2017 +tF=ZA=t+—HILFEZ®

Financial assets
at fair value Available-for-
through profit sale financial

or loss asset Total
BAFHEILA o[ &
ERZUBEE MBEE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FETT
At 1 April RMA—H — 16,678 16,678
Additions NE 4,951 — 4,951
Fair value loss NFEEE (113) (239) (352)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,838 16,439 21,277
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRETE=ZRIARNBE=_ZT—
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2016: NEZA=Z+-—BULEEFEEZEF:
Available-for-
sale financial
asset Total
Al &
MBEE FES
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
At 1 April RMEMA—H 13,358 13,358
Fair value gain NFEE Y= 3,320 3,320
At 31 March R=A=+—H 16,678 16,678
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
The Group does not have level 1 financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to assess the fair value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. The Group’s derivative financial liabilities are level
2 financial instruments and their fair values are determined
with reference to quotations provided by various banks.
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3. The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 March 2017 are level 3 financial assets. The fair
values of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets are
determined based on the net asset values of the funds
calculated with reference to the quoted prices in active
markets of the underlying investments of the funds. The
fair values of the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are valued by an independent
professional valuer and determined based on the market
capitalisation of the investees with key inputs being
price/earnings ratios of comparable companies, lack of
marketability discount rate, and forecasted business
performance of the investees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated write-downs of inventories to net

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgment and estimates. These estimates
are based on the market condition and the historical
experience of selling prices of similar nature. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

BBl st R FER
fil 5+ B ) B 7R 08 1 4 R R L R R
B AL B bt B E A - B IR R B I R 4
EBAEMABEHEE -

AEERARKELGEARBR  ABHE
AR RERGR ) EERERGERY
F-AEARARBRTEMRFEEHEE
REBEHREELREABAR ZMAEFTER
NI

(a) HFEMBETRRFEZMS
at
AEERBEFEZAERBERFHG
HEEMREERFE - EF5
HBEREBEERRERRVEZER
B BIRC %77 & MOBE © 38 Bl MU
BARERFE LG - ZFEaT0
ETMAMRAEHEEBEZBERLR
REE - ZEEHBERRMEFELA
B ZE=ESFrEFSECKREE
BEWRZEFEHHAZEE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Fair value of financial assets, investment property
and derivative financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments that are traded in an active market are
determined by the quoted market prices.

The fair value of investment property is determined by
using valuation technique. Details of the judgment and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 8.

For the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments not traded in an active market, the
Group would use the valuation technique or the quoted
price provided by counterparty to estimate the fair values.
The methodologies, models and assumptions used in
valuing these financial assets and derivative financial
instruments require judgment by management which are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. For further details refer to section 3.3 above.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment are
depreciated based on their estimated useful lives and
estimated residual values. Management has reviewed the
estimated useful lives and considers they are appropriate.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to market conditions. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated and will dispose of
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation

expense in future periods.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17

4

EE=EcH st RAEE)

(b)

(c)

MBEE REMERITE
EMTIHZAFE

EERTSEE MBAERITES
MTAZAFERTEREET -

1B % 7 T (A T FR 1A 5
B BMAERBR 2 FEDH
BB 3E8 o

RYBERXRERBMSEE 2%
BENMIEERMIAZAFEMNS -
AEEMBHEERDHIHFREREL
BEGLFAFE ZEWBEER
TEERMTAZMHEERZE  RA -
REFTEEEEBFLHE 2R
EEEEERER2MSEREL -
E—FHBEFE2R EXFE338 -

ME - BERRE 2 &I
FE 8RB E

AEEZME  BERRETRIE
HAGET A2 B I b ot M ex B (B
ETHE EERECENMGARE
AERYRABREREE - tAa
DREBUEERINGEZYE - B
EhRBzBCERAERFHZES
R IEH - BT RE & B Bl AR &%
GREERMAZTHMELEERX
P& o fi AT fE A B A R0 SR AT (A A
ZEH EEREBEMFERX
I #HECRBEZ RMRESLIE
REEEE - BREEFHATEA
REEEHAIEREH - EHERM AR
ERMEFHEENRE  UBRE
ARHE T ERX



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,

plant and equipment (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is
recognised as the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, which are based on the best
information available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges

in the period in which such estimate is changed.

4

(c)

(d)

B G st st R FE (&)

WM& - BERREZEEETE

RERRBEGE)
RIBEM 210 2SR D
X BEERRBZREBREER

SRBHEAKOSREZ ZRER -
A Y Bl & %R S B E 0 BR th & K AR
ZAFEEEREEEME ZRS
E-DREBAGSZ&REEMGE
ARBRREREBRENBERER

EREHETZATRBPHER
EENBREERABRAERZ S
&

Fiiaw

AEBAGNZERDEERZBIA -
REFTS BB AR B ER B AT -
BEHZERXGNFAEZREBEAR
ERABEXBHETE - HERARHK
BREMZCHEKBER  Z8H
FERTHENHAER KR
GHEE -

REEERSRAEABRERERD
A AR R E R AT AEER
MRABETERZHEZRELEREA
BE - WEMBREREGER
EREZRSTERTEDPHEER
CEERBEEENRASEHRAX
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables based on an assessment
of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables and

recoverability of trade receivables and other

other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. For
trade receivables, the assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the year in
which such estimate has been changed. For loan and
other receivables, the provision was made by reference to
the difference between the carrying amount of the other
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s
assumptions and estimates (Note 2.10). These calculations
require the use of estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(8)

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to identify indications
that the interest in associates which are significant to the
Group may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment
are often subjective in nature and the Group is required to
use judgment in applying such information to its business.
The Group'’s interpretation of this information has a direct
impact on whether an impairment assessment is performed
as at any given reporting date.

indication of such

If an identified,

is further subject to an exercise that

impairment is
information
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount,
representing the asset’s value in use. The Group is required
to make certain assumptions to make such assessment,
including the projected business performance and future
cash flows of the associates and appropriate discount
rates. Changes in any of these assumptions could result in
a material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of such associates. An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

4

EEEcH At RAEE)
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RS SR B

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the
“CODM") that make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the
internal reporting of the Group in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

During the year, the Executive Directors reviewed the qualitative
factors such as business activities, economic and legal
characteristics of the business and quantitative factors such
as the financial performance of the two segments previously
presented, namely electronics products and mould and plastic
products, and have determined that the moulds and plastic
products business did not qualify as a reportable or operating
segment, as such business contributed to less than 10% of all
of the Group’s financial indicators. As a result, the Group has
only one reportable segment under HKFRS 8.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers by
country of destination for the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016 is as follows:

PEEH
ETEEERREARBEAELERORE
ZREBHTEERBEEBEERR
A EBEBAREABRAEER TR
EAFERR D EER -

FA G PTEECEMETMEER(WER
B EBCRBEREAREBE)AREE
Ax(MErZ25 zMES R EIEFEM
REARBRBER ZMBERE) LEE
BANBRBEMEFRATAERBERAZ
BREED B AALEAXBEAEH
2E B ETRI0% Bt - RIBEFE
MG mELERES  AEEER—EA

EROE o

AEBHE_ZT—+tFR-_FT—AF=A
=t BUHEFEZRENBERE HZINE
BEEWZFE TR

2017 2016
—F—tF =ZT—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T FAET

The United States of America EH 625,647 554,206
Japan =[N 253,955 277,427
PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BEDE) 166,580 149,832
United Kingdom [ 94,899 168,466
Taiwan =0 79,858 40,989
Australia BN 70,708 79,184
Germany =X 34,535 45,090
Others HAth 87,921 52,906
1,414,103 1,368,100
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred

PEEH(E)
AEBBBEN S ERDEE(TRE
S P13 B A ) DATIAT

income tax assets, by geographical locations is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THE T

Hong Kong BB 85,790 90,847
Mainland China FR B A i 288,693 279,242
Macao S Y 9 21
374,492 370,110

For the year ended 31 March 2017, external revenue of
approximately HK$217,124,000 and HK$155,726,000 were
generated from two customers, who individually accounted for
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, external revenue of
approximately HK$208,179,000, HK$164,499,000 and
HK$141,779,000 were generated from three customers, who
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group's interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments in Mainland China and their

BHE-_ZE—tHF=A=+—HBILFE 5
BUEREMBETFSELMAER K=
10% A £ - SHE R D B4 &217,124,0007%8

7T }155,726,0007% JT °

BHE_Z—R"F=ZA=+—HBLFE "
e = -y S = RN S o
10% A & - 85 %% 58 9 Al 4 %208,179,000
7B JT * 164,499,000/ 7T }141,779,0007%5

7T|:o

T i fiE A #E

AEENLTHEREZEaSRTER
WHEEHERNTIR  BHEEHLEE

movements and net book value are analysed as follows: FEZOMAT :
2017 2016
—F—tE "—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Beginning of the year N E 7] 53,291 55,528
Amortisation B 8y (1,113) (1,153)
Exchange differences & =% (1,694) (1,084)
End of the year REK 50,484 53,291
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 V¥ -BMERRE
Furniture
Land and Leasehold Plant and and Construction in
building improvement machinery  equipment progress Total
T RiEF HEVEXE BERESZE RURRHE HEIR &t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FTHET FTHET FET FTHET FAET FET
At 1 April 2015 R-F-HAEMA—-AH
Cost BA 169,944 59,080 118,785 28,530 1,087 377,426
Accumulated depreciation RiEWE (11,677) (7,461) (81,964) (19,007) — (120,109)
Net book amount REFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257,317
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-T-~%
ZH=+-HiE%E
Opening net book amount FNRAFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257,317
Additions NE = 5,684 6,480 2,590 25,346 40,100
Disposals & — — — (15) — (15)
Depreciation nE (3,868) (5,706) (12,340) (3,640) — (25,554)
Exchange differences E X =% (4,700) (2,042) (1,435) (429) (6) (8,612)
Closing net book amount ERETFE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
At 31 March 2016 R=ZFB-A"E=ZHA=+—-8
Cost KA 165,047 62,477 122,569 29,575 26,427 406,095
Accumulated depreciation LBNE (15,348) (12,922) (93,043) (21,546) — (142,859)
Net book amount HREEE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-T-t%
=ZA=+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FUEEFAE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
Additions NE = 3,721 26,238 6,856 24,288 61,103
Transferred from construction in HEAEERIR
progress 27,788 11,373 640 520 (40,321) —
Disposals & — — (44) (2) = (46)
Impairment ok} (7,524) — — — — (7,524)
Depreciation nE (4,166) (6,625) (11,279) (3,862) — (25,932)
Exchange differences EREE (7,343) (3,248) (1,921) (565) (1,679) (14,756)
Closing net book amount ERETFE 158,454 54,776 43,160 10,976 8,715 276,081
At 31 March 2017 R-ZFB—t&E=HA=+-—-H
Cost KA 174,101 73,574 118,810 34,276 8,715 409,476
Accumulated depreciation 2BNE (15,647) (18,798) (75,650) (23,300 = (133,395)
Net book amount REEE 158,454 54,776 43,160 10,926 8,715 276,081
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 7 V¥ BERREE)
During the year, the Group relocated certain of its manufacturing FRN AEERKETEEREETHANM
plants from Huizhou to Dongguan in Mainland China. Upon BENBBER -RNIKBTKE  BE
the completion of relocation, the vacant manufacturing plants F1E7,524,0008 TR EMEEEEKE
in Huizhou with net book value of HK$7,524,000 were fully EEERE
impaired.
Depreciation of HK$11,279,000 (2016: HK$13,214,000) has Ir £11,279,000% (= T — KN F:
been charged to cost of sales, and HK$14,653,000 (2016: 13,214,000/ 7T) B R sH BB A NHIRR - M
HK$12,340,000) has been charged to general and administrative 14,653,000 7T (=& — 7~ € : 12,340,000
expenses. BI)AR—MRETHREEZARNANLR °
As at 31 March 2017, certain of the Group’s bank borrowings R-ZTE—+E=FA=+—H EFTAEEH
are secured by land and buildings with carrying value of RITEEABREE 537,827,000 T (=&
HK$37,827,000 (2016: HK$38,406,000) (Note 22). —74F : 38,406,000/ 7T) 2 + i RIEFE
R (P 7£22) o
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 BEMWME
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Beginning of the year R E A 10,000 10,100
Additions NE — 300
Fair value gain/(loss) ANEERZE(EBE) 200 (400)
End of the year REK 10,200 10,000
Note: Kt -
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment property: REEMERERER 2R
2017 2016
—F—tE —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Rental income He WA 358 360
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 8 HREWMX(E)
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no unprovided contractual R-ZE—+FE=A=+—H AEELE
obligations for future repairs and maintenance. FHERRBERREZARABHEENERE -
An independent valuation of the Group's investment property GERBEMNAELEERZIREERAF]
was performed by Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited, ERAEE R EYEETEIMGE =
qualified valuer, to determine the fair value of the investment EREMER=ZZE—tF=A=+—HZ
property as at 31 March 2017. The valuation was determined by AEBE- - HED2REELBRENAE
reference to direct comparison method using Level 3 approach. SRAEETE - EMAALLBRMEZE
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are BERETZRHHPINYMERE) 2= 21E
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. HFE o
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HEEEE
Customer relationship Product development Total Total
EEME ESEE st st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—t& -T-AF “B-—t& —T-AF ¥—tF -T-AF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHE T FTHET FHET
Beginning of the year R 5,584 10,738 1,667 1,634 7,251 12,372
Additions NE — — — 589 — 589
Amortisation (Note 29) B (H 2 29) (5.154) (5,154) (1,111) (556) (6,265) (5,710)
End of the year R 430 5,584 556 1,667 986 7,251
Amortisation of HK$6,265,000 (2016: HK$5,710,000) has B 356,265,000 (= T — N F:

been charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.
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10

GOODWILL 10 HE
2017 2016
—FE—t&E —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Beginning and end of the year NGRS E RS 3,949 3,949
The Group’s goodwill is related to the acquisitions of (i) a REBEEDEKBOEERMTERA
50% equity interest of Suga Technology Limited (“CGU 17); A150% IR A s ([IR | EEEL1]) ¢ Ki)
and (i) a 15% equity interest of Suga Technology Hong Kong EERMEBERAFIS% KA (B
Limited (“CGU 2"), both of which are wholly owned subsidiaries SHEEEM2)ER MEHLAEZENE
principally engaged in trading of electronic products. Both NE EERFEREEETEMm - MIEBEK
acquisitions took place in prior years. BEHORNBEFERA -
Impairment test for goodwill 7o 2 R (B A 5
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based ReEAEM 2 NESBENIREAE
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow B ELAET  BREGTEDRBEEEE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management R ERF R RBEEL 2 RE
covering a five-year period which incorporate the following key MEREBAEST HEFETINEERRK -
assumptions.
2017 2016
—T—-tF AN S

CGU1 CGU2 CGU1T CGU?2
Beg4d BeELE RoEL BRSEL

E5 i1 ES{i2 B B2
Terminal growth rate £ g 18 R 2R 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate Bh IR = 12% 12% 12% 12%
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10

158

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Management determined budgeted gross margin and revenue
growth rate based on past performance and their expectations
for market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are extrapolated
using a growth rate that do not exceed the long term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the CGUs operate.

Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared by

management, the directors are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2017.
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11

SUBSIDIARIES

11 MEA T
AARAR-_TE—+E=A=+—AzxE

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31

March 2017 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

Issued share capital/

HEAF BT :

Group equity

Principal activities and

Name legal entity paid-up capital interest place of operation
SE M ARSI RY ST HE B R A SR B FE
&% ZEREEERN EBT BARE % A4 TEXEBREEBE
2017 2016
-F -%
—t§ —RF
Suga International Limited (i) British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
liability company Us$700
RERZXHES  ARQA L@ R700E T K&K
Suga Electronics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100% Trading of electronic
Limited company products in Hong Kong
BEEBRRAA & ARRQA TER2E T REBEBEETEM
Suga Electronics Limited (ii) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2; 100% 100% Trading of electronic
company Non-voting products in Hong Kong
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (ii)
BEEEFHR A BE ARAR Lmk2B T REBEBEEFEM
EIRERRER S
4,000,000 7 (ii)
Suga Digital Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100% Design and trading of
company electronic products in
Hong Kong
EERBREBER QA B BRAF T@ER2EB T REBRGIREEEFER
Precise Computer Tooling Co., Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of moulds and
Limited company HK$500,000 plastic products in Hong
Kong
BIBKGEERAR BB BERAH 3@ f%500,000% 7T REBEEEARBRBER
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100% Property holding in Hong
company Kong
shis AR DA BB ARARA Tmk2B T REERBEYE
Suga Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100% Trading of electronic

FEEXMERAR

company

BB BERAR

T A2 T

products in Hong Kong
REAEEEFE®
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

11 MIBAT(E)

Issued share capital/

Group equity

Principal activities and
place of operation (where

Name legal entity paid-up capital interest applicable)
M AR 3L 3T e B R A R FE TEEBREEBEY
£ ZEEREN EBT BARE & A HE 2 (fei @A)
2017 2016
== —-=
—t&E —XF
Time Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$10 90% 90% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
BERCEFGRAF BE  ARARA AR08 T REBREFREER
SGI Venture Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 80% 80% Design and trading of
company HK$2,000,000 electronic products in
Hong Kong
EEHRBNERIF BB BRQA 38 %2,000,0007% 7T REBRFIREEEFER
Suga Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic
Limited company HK$100,000 products in Hong Kong
EERMEEERQA BEBRARA & 3@ f%100,0007% 7T NEBEBEFEM
Suga Macao Commercial Offshore  Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronics
Limited company MOP100,000 products in Macao
EERMBEFEERBSERAT B ARAF M AR100,0002 PT¥#5 REFMEERETFEM®
United Fountain Investment Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100% Pet food distribution in
company Hong Kong
ERKERRAA & BRAA TERIB T REEDHEMR R
Suga Electronics (Dongguan) Co. Mainland China, limited liability US$5,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
Limited (“SEDG") (iii), (xi) company products in Mainland
China
FEEFR=)BRAA(EEE TEAL ERAF 5,000,000 7T REPBERMEEEFE R
FERZD (i) + (xi)
Long Join (Hong Kong) Electronics Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100% Design and trading of
Co., Limited company electronic products in
Hong Kong
RREBETARAR HE BRAA TER2E T REBRTREBEEFES
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and Mainland China, limited liability US$6,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of moulds

Plastic Injection (Huizhou) Co.,

Limited (“Nodic”) (iv), (xi)

B — MAEEEZE(EMBR

AR (A1) (v) + (xi)

company

PEA - BRAAE

6,000,000 JT

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17
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BT %5 3 R M o

e ==
11 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 11 KB AE(8)
Place of incorporation/ Principal activities and
establishment and kind of Issued share capital/ Group equity place of operation (where
Name legal entity paid-up capital interest applicable)
E M ARSI ST b B R A K EE TEEBREEBEY
E ZEEREN EBT BARE & A 2 (fii @A)
2017 2016
- —-=
—tE —XF
Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co., Mainland China, limited liability US$12,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
Ltd. (“STDG") (v), (xi) company products in Mainland
China
REMAEEFRAR(REZE HEANL  FRAAF 12,000,000 7T KRB R A EE T E M
581D (v) » (xi)
Suga USA Inc. U.S.A., limited liability company Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding in U.S.A
xB  BRAA T mAR10E T REBREREER
Chummily Trading (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited liability HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Trading of pet products in
Limited (“CTL") (vi), (xi) company Mainland China
EXEBEZRINDERRAA(TEXE HEAMN - FRAAE 1,000,0007% 7T RAEBERMEBEDE R
1) (i) + (i)
Espetsso Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100% Distribution of pet products
company in Hong Kong
Espetsso Limited 'R BARAQA T AR T REBDHEME R
Chummily Technology (Tianjin) Co., Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of pet products
Ltd (“CTLTJ") (vii), (xi) company in Mainland China
REEXHFARAR(REL FEAH  BRAA A R #10,000,0007T R E R D HEYE B
32 1) (vii) + (xi)
Chummily International Trading Mainland China, limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of pet products
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“CTLGZ") company in Mainland China
(viii), (xi)
BMNERBERE S ERAF FEAM - BRAA A R #1,000,0007C R B A5 SHEE Y E @

(MM ) (viii) -+ (xi)

Happypaws International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$10 100% 100% Pet food distribution in Asia

company
HAOBEBEERERRAR A& ARAA T 3m AR 107 T REMNBERD HEYR G
Chongmi Investment & Consultation Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 90% 80% Consulting services in
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“CMIC") company Mainland China
(ix), (xi)
ARG EARRELZRER AT FEAHM  BRAAF A R #20,000,0007C AR B A 3 3R B RS AR 7S

(TFEAREE D (ix) » (xi)
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11.© SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

162

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The shares of Suga International Limited are held directly by the Company.
The shares of the other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics Limited are held by
Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway Business Limited, which are
owned by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors and beneficial
shareholders of the Company. These non-voting deferred shares have no
voting rights, are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any
distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per
ordinary share has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

SEDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 30 years until September 2020.

STDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 20 years until April 2027.

CTL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 30 years until April 2041.

CTLT) is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 30 years until December 2045.

CTLGZ is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China
with an approved period of operation of 30 years until December 2045.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

11 MIBAT(E)

Bt

Suga International Limited 2 f& {5 FA A A 7] &
A H M ERQR ZRM BB AR R EE
ES =

EEEFARAAZERERRELTRMA
Essential Mix Enterprises Limited 2 Broadway
Business Limited# 74 + Mm% E AR BB AR A
EEHRERRRREBLREERELGH
B-REERERBETRG EEREL R
RE - FEE RELTBRFEAEACESIR
& B A% 10,000,000,0008 018 © ZEmIE
EREERDHBEATAESIK

FEEEFRAEFRBEAMK L Z 2E D
¥ EREZEXHBREE-_T==F+-A
1E - B HI20%F -

MARERBEAMKLZ ZIERE - B
BEZEFHREE_T_TFAAL - B30
-

HcH B BERBEAE Y 2 2 INE B E -
B EZEEHREE_T_tFMAL A
HI204F -

BN AERERNMKY 2 2IERE Bk
BEZEAEHRAEAE TN —FEN AL AH
304 ©

KEENBERBEA Y 2 2 INE B E -
EiZEZEXHREE TN AF+=AL -
A HI304F -

EMNERBERBEAK Y 2 2 INE B E -
EiZEZEXHREE TN AF+=AL -
A HI304F -
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11 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

11 MIBAT(E)

12

Notes: (Continued)

(ix) CMIC is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

(x) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during

the year ended 31 March 2017.

(xi) All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have financial accounting

year end date on 31 December in accordance with the local statutory

requirements, which is not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated

financial statements of the Group being presented were prepared based

on the management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve months

ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

Wi (&)

(ix) BEARERETHEAMKILZZIIEDLE
ERAEZEXREE_T==F+"A1k "
R ER204F -

x) REBEE—T—+tF=A=+—HIEFEEMAK
M BENBARNEEMNEHRTEEER -

xi) REBEEHER  AAERTEAMKL 2B
REAZHHREBFAFEFHBART_A=T
—H - BAEEZFHEATE - FRIIGAE
BGalBRERDEZENBRARBE-E
—t+tF=A=F+—HRZZE—RF=ZA=1+—
BE+—EAZERREGH -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 12 REBEATIZHER
2017 2016
—EB—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ET FB T
Interests in associates (Note (a) KBt E QA 2 (M @) 3,804 3,876

Amount due from an associate (Note (b)) JE Wy — A Bt & R B 3R

(K77 (b)) 3,250 431
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REZEATIZHEZR(E)
(a) Interests in associates (a) MREBEATIZER
2017 2016
—T—tE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Beginning of the year R E ) 3,876 —
Increase in interests in associates (i) A RRNETI - R () 1,181 5,188
Share of losses of associates e LB Z AR E 1B (1,253) (1,312)
Share of net assets [EREEFE 3,804 3,876
() During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group () REBEE-_Z—tHF=ZA=+

164

invested in two new associates, Growgreen Limited

("Growgreen”) and Cohuborate Limited (“Cohub”),

companies incorporated in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom, at considerations of HK$1,000,000

and HK$181,000, respectively.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17
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12

(a)

yuje — ===
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REEEATIZHEER(E)
. . . 23 = =
Interests in associates (Continued) (a) MEBEATIZHER(E)
The assets and liabilities of the Group’s principal associates, AEBZFEFRLETHERRZE
which are unlisted, are as follows: EFABNOT:
Particulars of issued Country of
Name shares held incorporation Interest held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss
&% REERTROHE AL E R RE#ER BE Aafi W & B
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
= -2 =t -z =t -z = -2 = -2
-tE —R"F -t&§ —FKFE -t&§ -KF -t&§ -FKF -t& —iF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT Tz TERT TEx TFExT TExz TFERT TEx
Concept Infinity Limited ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong, limited 25% 25% 2,900 2,982 3,988 1176 482 217 2,895 4,494
("CIL") HK$5,000,000 liability company
(2016: HK$5,000,000)
ZREBERAA 38 175,000,000/ 7T Bk HERAR
([2R88E) (ZE-R%:
5,000,0007% 7T
Growgreen Ordinary shares Hong Kong, limited 48.39% — 1,488 — 141 — 183 — 691 —
W HK$1,000,000 liability company
(2016: Nil)
38 1£1,000,000% 7T Bk HRAR
(ZB-—R"E: %)
Cohub Ordinary shares Great United Kingdom, 24% — 137 — 973 — — — 836 —
British Pound ("GBP") limited liability
24 (2016: Nil) company
ERRURG(HEE]) HE BRRA
(ZB-R"F: %)
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12/ INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REEATIZHEER (&)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued) (a) NMEBEATIZEZ(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt B E R 2 R AR S BT R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the FERZIEREAAEREREAE
principal associates recognised in the consolidated financial Y AR
statements:

CIL Growgreen Cohub
EHAE ] Cohub
2017 2016 2017 2017
“B—tE T F ZF—tE —F-t&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Net (liabilities)/assets of the associates M=A=+—HzHEZ QD
as at 31 March Al(BfE)/ EE%FE (1,088) 1,806 1,347 (836)
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7x& B A B & A B & #
interest in the associates Rz 2 el 25% 25% 48.39% 24%
Net assets attributable to the Group ZAEBELEEZFE — 451 652 —
Goodwill EES 3,152 3,425 — —
Carrying amount of the Group's AEEREE AR 2R
interest in the associates REE 3,152 3,876 652 —

(b) Amount due from an associate () FEW—EBEATIRIE
As at 31 March 2016, amount due from an associate of RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—8 " BRK—
HK$431,000 was unsecured, non-interest bearing and fE B & A A1 518 431,000 7T /3 1K
repayable on demand. R BE M BREREE -

As at 31 March 2017, amount due from an associate R-E—+tF=A=+—8 " Ek—
amounting to HK$250,000 was non-interest bearing, i1 Bk & 2 B] 5K IH 250,000 7T /5 fE 1K
unsecured and repayable on demand. T ERBREKREE -
The remaining balance of HK$3,000,000 are non-interest £ $83,000,0007% 7T & T 51 B I R
bearing and repayable by September 2017. HK$2,250,000 “E-tHFNARER - ZHBEHRH
of such balance are secured by personal guarantee given by 2,250,000/ JL bA RS & A B £ B AR
a major shareholder of the associate, while the remaining EHEAERSER  MHBTE
balance of HK$750,000 are unsecured. #£750,00078 7T, A HE K 4 -
In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts BEERR BBERRZA K@K
of the respective associates are not less than the carrying BALDRARERZSTHE QAR
value of the Group’s investments in those associates. BZREME -
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BT %5 3 R M o

13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 13 IRIERIEISZHMEESEREE

Assets at
fair value
through
Loans and profit or Available-
receivables loss for-sale Total
BAEE
BERR EEAERE
FEW I8 ZEE o HE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FA& T F#& T FH& T
Assets BaE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMEEE
(Note 14) (Kt at14) — — 16,439 16,439
Bond investment (Note 15) BEHIEE (K #15) 7711 — — 771
Financial assets at fair value through &2 A F{E A 82 2 875
profit or loss (Note 17) BEMNFI7) — 4,838 — 4,838
Trade and other receivables, excluding J& Ut & 5 B 3% & H b & Uk
prepayments A ANEEEMRE
(Note 18) (H17E18) 216,748 — — 216,748
Loan receivables e B X 6,496 — — 6,496
Amount due from an associate JE Ui — ] Bt i 1 A 3T8
(Note 12(b)) (K1 7E12(b) 3,250 — — 3,250
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEY
(Note 21) (Kt &£21) 223,867 — — 223,867
458,072 4,838 16,439 479,349
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—XRE=A=+—8H
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEMBEE
(Note 14) (Ktat14) — — 16,678 16,678
Bond investment (Note 15) BHEE M ZEI5) 7,711 — = 7,711
Trade and other receivables, excluding J& Ut Z 5 B 3k & H b jE Uk
prepayments (Note 18) B NEIEBEMNRIE
(H17E18) 194,112 — — 194,112
Loan receivables (Note 20) FE Wk B 3R (K7 7£20) 12,960 — — 12,960
Amount due from an associate JE L — ] Bt i X A 518
(Note 12(b)) (Kt aF12(b) 431 — — 431
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) B & RBHE&EHEY
(Ht7E21) 225,027 — — 225,027
440,241 — 16,678 456,919
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 13 IRERIEIS M EESEREHE

(CONTINUED) (48)
Liabilities at fair Other financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
TR 8 AR A
BAFERLAE FI AR Z H th
B2 EfE MBAaR &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FABT
Liabilities BfE
At 31 March 2017 R-E—t+tF=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 24) &8 5 R 50 K H fth FE £+t
TRIA (B it 24) — 245,013 245,013
Bank borrowings (Note 22) RITBE (K t22) — 115,015 115,015
— 360,028 360,028
At 31 March 2016 RZZT—A"F=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 24) FERT 8 5 R R H A
& 5t SR IE (K 22 24) — 185,468 185,468
Bank borrowings (Note 22) RITEE (K it22) — 112,129 112,129
Derivative financial instruments PTESB T A K iF16)
(Note 16) 1,946 — 1,946
1,946 297,597 299,543
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B4 95 45 3 B &

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

15

14 AJHEKEMBEE

2017 2016

—E—tE _—ZT—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE T

At 1 April REA—H 16,678 13,358
Fair value (loss)/gain NEEERE), MW (239) 3,320
At 31 March R=A=+—H 16,439 16,678

As at 31 March 2017, available-for-sale financial assets
comprised 3,288 (2016: 3,288) and 500 (2016: 500) non-voting
and redeemable shares in two unlisted equity funds. These
equity funds are denominated in United States dollars, with fair
values being determined based on the carrying value of the
funds calculated with reference to the quoted market prices of
the underlying investments. The fair values are within level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

BOND INVESTMENT

MN-ZE—+E=A=+—8 AtHEs
B EBEMIEIE LA E S H3,288
A% (=T —7<4F : 3,288% ) K 500f% (—ZF —
JNEFE S00fR) ERIAEAIERIRD - %%
BARESAETIE  ERAFEDIRER
BAERENMISREFENESEKRE
BEMEE - A FEITRAFESR=E
33)F=HA -

15 JHEH/E

2017 2016
—E—tE T F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFE T

At 31 March R=A=+—8H 7,711 7,711
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SRR

15

16

170

BOND INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

The terms of maturity of the bond investment is summarised as

15 RHEREGE)

BREREZFMGEFT R AT

follows:
2017 2016
—EB—tE —T—KF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Between 2 and 5 years E_EFEZERF 7,711 7,711

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s bond investment
is unlisted, denominated in United States dollars, and bears a
coupon rate of 5.55% per annum.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of the bond investment.

RZE—+t+tEFER_E—RNEF=ZA=1+—
B AEBENEHEERIELT  UET
HIE - WHHEREEFF555% °

RBESAH  FAEERRABEFREZ
AREE -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 16 TEEMTIAR
2017 2016
—F—-tHE Z—ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET

Liabilities =R

Forward foreign exchange contracts EAINES D — 1,946
As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s notional principal of RZEBE-—XRE=ZA=1+—0  x5EHH
the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts was TEREINE S ) & A £ FE A7,000,0003

US$7,000,000. These foreign exchange forward contracts were
held for trading purpose and expired in October 2016.
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17

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

17 FAFEILANERZMBEE

2017 2016

—¥—-tE —Z—RKRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEX FET

Unlisted equity instruments FELEMBRATA 4,838 —

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss mainly comprised future equity interests in
an investee (the “Investee”) which is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong principally engaged in development and distribution
of pet related mobile applications and electronic devices.

Under the terms of agreement with the Investee, which will
expire in November 2018, the Group will be entitled to 10%
of the equity interest of the Investee in return for its limited
initial investment of US$600,000, except under the following
scenarios:

— In the event of the Investee being able to effect additional
equity financing, the Investee will issue preference shares
to the Group at value equivalent to US$600,000 plus
a right for the Group to purchase additional preference
shares at certain share price.

— In the event of a change in control or successful initial
public offering (“IPO") of the Investee, the Group may
receive cash payment of US$600,000 or equivalent value
of ordinary shares of the Investee.

— In the event of winding up of the Investee, the Group will
have preferential distribution up to US$600,000 over other
shareholders.

As at 31 March 2017, the fair value of the Group’s unlisted
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is determined
by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, qualified valuer, by market
approach. Key inputs to the valuation include price/earnings
ratios of comparable companies, lack of marketability discount
rate, and forecasted business performance of the investees. The
fair values are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note
3.3)

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—0 XAEEEA
FELABRIVMBEETRBRERK
BEF((HRRET] REBEMKILIAOR
A TERERABERDHEVHBRD
ERARARETRE)NERBRAES -

BIEERWIRE F I 2 s 265K ;%
FRBRR-ZZE-NF+—AER AEEB
AW R E F10% AR - 155
H AR #)# 3% E600,000% Ty @ 3 - H
NI AR

— HHEEREFAIESEHEINRARE
Z WwEREABRRAASEZTEER
B E12600,000/8 B LML - S0
REBZE TREBERIMELR
B REFI o

— MRREFEHEFERERDH

HE(ERAHABEDNKY  A%KH
AJYEN600,000K ST HHFE R KIRE
TEBARNEENBRESNR-

— MWEREDBR AKREBREAM

% 318 % o Bt 5 %600,0003 7T °

R-B—+E=A=1+—08 A&EEEQ
FEFABENIFELETHHEEENATFE
MEERGEMERTEZAERARF
UMBEAET - HEMNEEH ASEE
BAALBARKER " BFLE - B
AIEHERNIR K - RWIRE 5 B TE B R &
B AFETIRAFEZEH(HFE3IE
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BWEBESRAREMEKRIE
2017 2016

—E—tE TR F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiET THE T

Trade receivables FE U B 5 BR 5k 209,741 189,182
Less: Provision for impairment B ORUE B (3.772) (3,836)
Trade receivables, net FEW B 5 IR 5K 558 205,969 185,346
Prepayment to vendors TERE S RIE 11,838 5,068
Other prepayments H b 78 5k I8 3,046 6,115
Rental and other deposits HekEMiZe 938 1,692
Value added tax receivables JE U 3% B B 1,533 2,310
Others HAt 8,460 4,764
231,784 205,295

Less: Non-current portion o IE BN EB — (4,118)

Current portion of trade and other receivables FEW & 5 BR 5k I B Ath JiE UL

KIE 2 i &) &R 231,784 201,177

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

18

FE W B2 5 B 5K B 3L fth B W =R IR
(4)
RZZ—LFR=E-—AF=A=+—
A EUESERRERAEZREAR
T :

2017 2016
—ET—tE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
0 to 30 days 02 30H 199,313 175,791
31 to 60 days 31£60H 1,253 2,192
61 to 90 days 61£90H 3,388 2,771
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,954 4,151
Over 180 days 180H A £ 3,833 4,277
209,741 189,182
Less: Provision for impairment R (B (3.772) (3.836)
Trade receivables, net e E F R FUF R 205,969 185,346
All trade receivables are either repayable within one year or on FIERWESRNENR —FARRAEZEK

demand.

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to its

customers.

BiE -

AEE-RETHEFPOBAZEES -
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18

174

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$6,655,000 (2016:
HK$9,555,000) were past due but not considered impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers who have
no recent history of default. The ageing of these receivables is

18

FEWE SRR R H B RRIE
(#8)

R=ZZE—tF=H=+—H ' 6,655000%
(== — /<4 : 9,555,000/ 0) 2 JE W &
SEFRCOHERBLERE - ZFEK
BHRNEZ AR EIE RS2 B

as follows: XA WERKER ZERERAT
2017 2016

—E—tE ZZEZ—FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET

31 to 60 days 31260H 1,252 2,192
61 to 90 days 61£290H 3,388 2,771
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,954 4,151
Over 180 days 180H A £ 61 441
6,655 9,555

As of 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$3,772,000
(2016: HK$3,836,000) were considered impaired. The individual
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers which no
longer have business relationship with the Group. The amount
of provision was HK$3,772,000 as of 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$3,836,000). The impairment was firstly assessed individually
for significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining
balances were grouped for collective assessment according to
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers were
of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired receivables

RZE—tF=HA=+—H " 3,772,000/
JTo(ZZ — 734 : 3,836,000 L) 2 FEWE
SEZRADHME - EBIES RFIEERSR
BHXrZHBEEASEEEXBHAEZE
FiEB - —T—tF=-A=+—B2&HE
#3,772,0007% T (ZZ — /X 4F : 3,836,000
BIL) c EANBHEABHRZMEG L
EBYTE  BERBARF ZEERKE
L R ERR R BT L XS A
ERBEME - WEBRERKERZE

is as follows: BRINR
2017 2016
—ET—tE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&EIT FE T
Over 180 days 1808 KA k£ 3,772 3,836
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18 FEUG B 5Bk 3% & H {th FE g = IE

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

(48)
BNESERREREEDOT

2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 April R A—H 3,836 3,878
Exchange differences fEH ZRE (64) (42)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 3,772 3,836

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor considered impaired amounting to HK$199,313,000
(2016: HK$175,791,000) could be assessed by reference to their
payment history and current financial position. These receivables
relate to a whole range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balance is expected to be fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2017, the trade receivables from five customers
accounted for approximately 41% (2016: 31%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group’s credit risk management is disclosed in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

(2016: Nil) was
recognised for impairment of its trade receivables.

During the vyear, no additional provision

REBHIRERAEBEREKRES
AR 3X199,313,000/% L(= & — /X F:
175,791,000 T) 2 EBE =2 ZH A
TERRERMBERRETTG 25
EWREESZ RO PITEERNCDH T
FEM - - BEEERE BRNEEERTE
BAREHRZEZEHTAHTZEUWE - i
HAMZ S EMRIELBERE -

R-ZB—+E=A=+—8 KA"AAE
FZREZESETEEKESERBERELD
N%(ZTE—ANEF:31%) - AEBZEE
FEREERGEE B REMAIEE

FA - ANEE I LR R 5 BRSO (B 1
REBEIBE (T —RNF &) -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

18

FEW B8 5 AR ok R S fth FE M SR IE
(&)
P Lt B8 5 5 AR 2 PR T (B B A T 9 M 51 £

2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TF#IT FB T

Hong Kong dollars & TT 3,841 105,566
United States dollars ETT 203,507 73,253
Renminbi AR 2,393 10,363
209,741 189,182

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as their
counterparties are either banks, government, corporation or
individual with good credit ratings. The majorities of these
financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and there is
no history of default. The carrying amount of deposits, value
added tax receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEEASTAERE RS  BUIEERLHE
EERAREEAEERR  RESXS
BHHYRRT BEXEBREFEEN
Mz RAEIHEA - ZEMEEERNLDY
AREHSORE B EBRELE - 2E -
JE W B (B B Je B FE WK IR 2 PR E (B 1R
AT EEIIHE

2017 2016

—EB—tFE —ZT—KF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&EIT FE T

Hong Kong dollars BT 886 1,410
Renminbi AR 7,409 7,203
United States dollars ETT 2,200 148
Others Hfb 32 5
10,527 8,766

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

19 INVENTORIES 19 #E&
2017 2016
—E—tE _—ZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R 153,870 114,623
Work-in-progress + X fh 21,483 25,156
Finished goods X & 24,401 32,210
199,754 171,989
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (3.605) (4,628)
196,149 167,361
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRRBAXRFTABEER R ZTFEEK
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,040,978,000 (2016: 7N /1,040,978,000%8 L (= T — /X F ¢
HK$1,011,154,000). 1,011,154,0007% JT ) °
20 LOAN RECEIVABLE 20 EREWRRIE
2017 2016
—F—tF ZZT—~F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Loan receivable B E W FRIE 8,960 15,600
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (2,464) (2,640)
6,496 12,960
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21

178

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 20 BEFRREWRIE(E)
As at 31 March 2017, loan receivable represents loan to a third RZE—+F=A=+—"8 EXEKRX
party of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,960,000) (2016: HARETE=THENRAKES,000,000
RMB13,000,000, equivalent to HK$15,600,000), which is interest 7T (#8 % 708,960,000 TL)(ZF — /N F
bearing at 6% per annum and was originally repayable on A R #13,000,0007T © #H 5 515,600,000
15 November 2014. The loan was secured by the pledge of a BIT) BEF6%MAEGFERNE - IR
property located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a ERZZE—WF+—A+HHBERE -BEXR
98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated company engaging KERUNAPEAREMBE(H A A
in educational consultancy services. Such loan was subsequently MER—BEPEFMA IO AR (EZE
past due and an impairment provision of RMB2,200,000 B AHE BN RE) 798.81% IR AN #E 2 1E
(equivalent to HK$2,464,000) was made as at 31 March 2017 BER ZEREREAH TR-F
(2016: RMB2,200,000, equivalent to HK$2,640,000). —tE=ZA=+—HAARBREEBAR
#2,200,0007T (48 5 #22,464,0005% 7T) (=
T —XF: AR%22000007T - BHER
2,640,000 7T) °
During the current year, the pledged property has been sold RERN BRACBLEERWE - HEM
by the borrower, for which the sales proceeds were used to SRECHRENEREKHKIE - R=ZFT
settle the loan receivable. As at 31 March 2017, loan principal —tF=ZA=+—H EXLBEARE
of RMB5,000,000 has been settled and a further settlement of 5,000,000cE& TR -_FE—+F R
RMB4,000,000 was made in May 2017. Hi#E— & A K ¥®4,000,0007T °
The directors of the Company had performed an impairment AAREZEETREN G LRENRZ
assessment and concluded that as at 31 March 2017, an T—+F=H=1+—H BEXEWFIE
impairment provision of RMB2,200,000 (equivalent to FT 1R BB B B A R #2,200,0007T (B
HK$2,464,000) against the loan receivable is adequate and 12,464,000 L) B R BEWLTBE °
not excessive. Accordingly, no further impairment was made in It WEREEZE_T—tF=H=1+—H
relation to such loan during the year ended 31 March 2017. IEFERZERGTIRE—FRIE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERREEEYD
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—KF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 186,873 208,227
Short-term bank deposits EARITEX 36,994 16,800
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEY 223,867 225,027

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

21

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

21 RERBEEFEMER)
ReRRSSEYBUTEMFIME:

currencies:
2017 2016
=F¥—tE —ZT—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Hong Kong dollars 7T 22,523 20,504
United States dollars ET 144,824 137,000
Renminbi AR 56,430 67,288
Other currencies HthEr 90 235
223,867 225,027

As at 31 March 2017, the effective interest rate on bank deposits
was 0.8% (2016: 0.5%) per annum. The bank deposits of the
Group have an average maturity of 20 days (2016: 7 days).

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the Group
denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies and remittance
of RMB funds out of Mainland China are subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland Chinese Government.

RZZE—+E=ZA=+—8" R|RTIEXK
CEBRFERAETF08% (ZT —NF:
0.5%) - AEBZRITHERZFHEHA
BOR(ZE—XRF 7K) -

AEEHUARBHEZRTERERS
REANEREARBELTENML A
5% o B 9 1 B Y 9 4 2 0 5 AL 4R 9L T
1555 R ) -
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22, BANK BORROWINGS 22 RITEEH
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEIT FAT
Non-current FE i &h
Long-term bank borrowings RERITEE 115,015 112,129
Less: current portion of long-term bank borrowings & : K81 iR 1T B &3l o (108,337) (101,197)
6,678 10,932
Current &
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings RHARITEE RSB 108,337 101,197
Total borrowings HgeuE 115,015 112,129
The terms of borrowings are as follows: & E R T 5 B fE 5 B -
2017 2016
—¥—-tE —ZT—KRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Within one year —F R 108,337 101,197
In the second year EH= 2,921 4,288
Between 2 and 5 years E_FERERF 3,757 6,644
115,015 112,129
At 31 March 2017, the Group has aggregate banking facilities RZE—+tF=HA=+—H &X&
of approximately HK$686,500,000 (2016: HK$663,250,000) for BEY ERREBEIBMEERTEE
overdrafts, loans and trade financing. 48 =8 #1686,500,00078 7L (= & — /N ¢

663,250,0005% 7T) ©

180 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

22

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Unused facilities at the same date amounted to approximately
HK$566,142,960 (2016: HK$551,121,000). These facilities are
secured by:

(@) certain land and buildings (Note 7) of the Group
with the carrying amount of HK$37,827,000 (2016:
HK$38,406,000).

(b)  corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries.

In addition to the above, the Group is required to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by the banks.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates were as follows:

22

IMITEE(E)
BBz & 8) A gl & £566,142,9607% T (=
T —7X4F : 551,121,0008 7T) ° % Z @ & A
THIEE R

(@) AEBBRMIE A37,827,000/% T (=
T — X 4F 38,406,000 ) 2 & F
T REF (B E7) -

b)) ARAREETHBRARRH#ZA
AIELR ©

B Lt E S - NEBAETRITHED
T IR I ¥ 75 R e

-

N
4
it

AEERERHZNXERBRIAVE
MEBRBAMT:

2017 2016
—F—tF Z—T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
6 months or less NE AT 23,559 21,083
7 to 12 months tE=+-@EAH 83,334 80,114
1 to 5 years = FA4E 8,122 10,932
115,015 112,129

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REERAZEBREFEMAT

follows:

2017 2016

—E—tE —ZT—RF

Bank borrowings

As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates, the
carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values
and all balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

2.9%

FRETE - BERE
ERRIGIRBTT
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 REFTEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is BLEHBEEEREEMBEESNEAT
as follows:
2017 2016
—EF—+txE —EF—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFBMREE:
— Deferred income tax asset to be recovered after — #+—1{& A& g E =
more than 12 months EIEFISIE E (1,086) (323)
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFBHAE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled after — #+ 1A BB EE 2
more than 12 months REMSHREaE 453 1,443
The movement in the net deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities BRERIEFREH (BE) ABEFHEIEH
account is as follows: N
2017 2016
—F—+tx —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
At 1 April RMEA—H 1,120 1,343
Credited to consolidated income statement RErE W RETA B #33)
(Note 33) (1,753) (223)
At 31 March R=A=+—H (633) 1,120
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 23 BEFTEH(E)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BRLEFMSMEERBERFRNZEE (R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of AR RR—MBEEEEEEZ &R0
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred income tax assets — BEFFBHEE -
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax loss Others Total
BEBIERE BIEBRE Hit &t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE—tFE T RF ZB—tF T RF ZB—tF T F ZB—tFE —T—RF
HK$°000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT FHT FHBT FHT FHET FHT FHT

At 1 April HEA—R (41) (141) (282) (621) =

— (323) (762)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RERE W s &
income statement e GEA) 5 100 234 339 (1,002) — (763) 439
At 31 March W=A=+—8 (36) (41) (48) (282) (1,002) — (1,086) (323)
Deferred income tax liabilities — BIEFREBHEAE -
Accelerated tax
Intangible assets depreciation Total
BREE niE B IE & &t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZB-tF —F-F Z¥-tF —FT-F ZB-tF —FT-%F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TRET FERT TET FERT TRET

At 1 April REA—R 922 1772 521 333 1,443 2,105
(Charged)/credited to consolidated income REARERENR),/

statement EN (850) (850) (140) 188 (990) (662)
At 31 March R=ZA=+-8 72 922 381 521 453 1,443
As at 31 March 2017, the Group has unrecognised tax losses RZE—tF=F=+—8 BB BFNE
of HK$24,330,000 (2016: HK$6,973,000) for Hong Kong profits mmE(MERERERE) AEEARK
tax purposes, which have no expiry, and unrecognised tax losses tE 72 B 18 &5 1824,330,00008 T (=& — X
of HK$39,821,000 (2016: HK$34,525,000) for PRC corporate % :6,973,000%& 7T) LB EMFH
income tax purposes which will expire during year 2017 to year iME - R HERDIEEE 539,821,000
2021. No deferred tax assets have been recognised for these tax JC(=ZZ—754F 34,525,000/ 1) © WHER
losses as the directors consider that it is not probable that the —ELEFEE_T_—FFEHH -
temporary difference will be reversed in the foreseeable future. HREZRAERZHAURITERAR

KRB D - BB % AR R R
ELERAEE -
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23

24

184

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 23 ERIEFRIE W (4E)
At 31 March 2017, deferred income tax liabilities of R-_E—+tF=A=+—H: ELEEH
HK$1,358,000 (2016: HK$1,511,000) has not been recognised for 5 % & 151,358,000 L (=& — K &F:
the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on 1,511,000 70) W R gt /5 T B AR 2 &
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as the Company EHAMNERBEORREMHTE  REA
controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not RAREHZENB AR ZREEE - M
probable that these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the ZEWBRAAE AR A R RD I &
foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$27,152,000 Mo R-ZE—F+E=A=+—H2ZKREL
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$30,228,000). BF &£ B27,152,0008 L (ZE— < F:
30,228,000 7T) °
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 FEFHEE SRR AR K& H fth FE R IE
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—KF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Trade payables FE B 5 IR 5K 193,454 149,764
Salaries and staff welfare payable ENEFHE2kETIREFR 10,721 13,547
Accrued expenses FEETE A 4,610 6,036
Others H At 36,228 16,121
Total trade and other payables FE & 5 BR 5k B EAth & At
FIARR 245,013 185,468
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

(@)  The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice

24

FE 11 2 5 Bk 7k % H b FE 4 =R I8

(%)

@ ENEZERFREZAHZERERS

date were as follows: W
2017 2016
—E—-tE —ZT—KF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 02 30H 178,997 135,102
31 to 60 days 31£60H 3,081 6,767
61 to 90 days 61£90H 3,711 473
91 to 180 days 91£180H 6,281 2,658
Over 180 days 180H A E 1,384 4,764
193,454 149,764

7R B P B 3 AR R e Bl S R
RHzAVFEEEKmEEMRS

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables
approximate their carrying values.

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated ENESERZEEERATER

in the following currencies: FI{& :
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZE—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 16,547 18,897
United States dollars ETT 143,332 107,793
Renminbi AR 33,575 23,064
Other EH A, — 10
193,454 149,764
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24 FEHEE 5 AR K& H ith FE 7 R IE
(#8)
(b)  The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated (by HMENHKREBEZEEHEBEERNATER
in the following currencies: HIME
2017 2016
—E—tE ZZEZ—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Hong Kong dollars A IT 10,215 11,528
Renminbi AR 20,434 22,490
United States dollars ET 20,872 1,686
Other H A 38 —
51,559 35,704
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 BgF
Number of Nominal
shares value
% 9 818 mE
‘000 HK$'000
T4 FAT
Authorised — ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EE — BREEIETZ
L i A 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of BETEERE — 8K
HK$0.1 each EE0.1E T2 @K
As at 1 April 2015 RZZE—HAFMA—H 273,712 27,371
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise of RATE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% BTG
options FTiS KT 3,412 341
As at 31 March 2016 RZTE-—RF=ZA=+—H 277,124 27,712
As at 1 April 2016 R-ZZE—AR"FMNA—H 277124 27,712
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise of RAITE B R BEITIRGD
options Fr 15 3k 18 3,876 388
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tF=A=+—8H 281,000 28,100
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26 SHARE OPTIONS 26 HEhxtE
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share RRABRZE —ZF N\ AN BE M E R
Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant to the Share sHEI (T AR &) - RIBERETE
Option Scheme, the Company may grant share options to certain RARAMAEEE TERARREES
grantees (including directors and employees) of the Group to REEB)MBEBREUNRBERRTRMD -
subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum number of BEBREGFESRASEERRA 2EME
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding fhEEAREET EIRE R M RITE 2 T &
options granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option TIEIINBRERITERAEETZER
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the BHEE  TEBEBARFTRHEEITR
Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share capital of the K30% - RIBEFHESEE  «EHT
Company in issue from time to time. The subscription price will DR GOHEE  #HIEEREZRZAEH
be determined by the directors, and will not be less than the P& 17 72 Bk 22 P P 3R UL T (B I B 5 R R
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of A% B HA R A8 2 5 B IR 15 72 B 32 BT AT R
the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of FHRMERESERLE) -
granting the options and the average of the closing prices of
the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting the options.
Movements in the number of share options outstanding during FAMRITEBERERE 2ESHIT
the year are as follows:
2017 2016
—T—tF AN
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HK$ per Number of HK$ per Number of
share options share options
BRZEYH Bk 2
EBLITEE BIRERE BroEE BRESE
‘000 ‘000
T 1 F1»
At 1 April R A—H 2.277 23,896 1.786 8,498
Granted during the year FABERH 2.190 3,300 2.401 18,910
Exercised B2171E 2.193 (3.,876) 1.755 (3,412)
Lapsed B R 2.121 (370) 1.780 (100)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 22,950 23,896

RZE—+F=A=+—HB " FIAERRKIT
E2BBEEETHERS -

As at 31 March 2017, all of the outstanding options were fully
vested.
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26

188

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2016, all of the outstanding options were fully
vested and exercisable, except for the 4,210,000 options granted
on 7 January 2016, which have a vesting period of 1 year and
are exercisable on 6 January 2017.

3,876,000 share options (2016: 3,412,000 share options) were
exercised during the year resulting in 3,876,000 shares (2016:
3,412,000 shares) being issued at a weighted average price of
HK$2.193 (2016: HK$1.755) each. The related weighted average
share price at the time of exercise was HK$2.45 (2016: HK$1.95)
per share.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

26

Number of options

PR R HE(48)
4,210,000 R ER T —RF—Ht
ARE(EREHA—FUINR=_ZF—+tF
—ARNBRIFIE) I R=ZFE—RNEF=A
=t+—HB FENATEZERED
BE -

% M3,876,00017 & IR (=T — X F -
3,412,00017 iE B i) B 1T - BEUE M
EFEHEBRGR21DBBT(ZE—XNF:
1.7557% 7T.) % 173,876,000% f% 15 (= Z —
JNEE 13,412,000 B ) o 1T 2 4B B AN
BB EAER2458T (T —RE:
1.95%7T) °

R KT IR 2 BB R E AT (5 (8
T

Vested percentages

BRESE EEBESH
Exercise

Expiry date price 2017 2016 2017 2016
FH8 THEE —F—t& —T—XF ZT—tF —T— X F

‘000 ‘000

T 14 T4
Directors EE
20 March 2019 —E-h&=HA=+H 1.780 600 600 100% 100%
18 January 2020 i RWAN 2.158 2,200 2,200 100% 100%
29 June 2021 —ET=—FXA=thH 2.190 3,300 — 100% —
Employees BE
21 October 2016 —ZE-RE+A=Z+—H 1.750 — 36 100% 100%
20 March 2019 - hE=A=+H 1.780 200 450 100% 100%
18 January 2020 e RWAN 2.158 1,300 1,300 100% 100%
9 July 2020 —ZT=-ZTF+ANH 2.260 2,200 4,700 100% 100%
15 July 2019 —T-NFtA+HA 2.800 10,000 10,000 100% 100%
6 January 2021 —ZE=-—F—AXAH 2.142 2,750 4,210 100% 23%
Others Hit
20 March 2019 —T-NAE=ZA=+H 1.780 400 400 100% 100%

22,950 23,896
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 26 BB HE(4E)

The weighted average fair value of the options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2017 determined using the
binomial option pricing model was approximately HK$0.218
(2016: HK$0.406, HK$0.205 and HK$0.251) per share. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$2.13
(2016: HK$2.26, HK$2.80 and HK$2.142) as at the grant date,
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 27.68% (2016:
33.21%, 28.75% and 31.06%), expected life of options of five
years (2016: five, four and four years), expected dividend yield
of 7.05% (2016: 6.92%, 6.92% and 9.06%) and annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.68% (2016: 0.97%, 0.87% and 0.94%)
respectively. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over a period of five years (2016:
five, four and four years) before the date when the options were
granted.

REBEE-Z—+tF=A=1t—HILEER
BREzERERB-_EAHETEER
EEZNEFEFHRAFELN A TR 218
JTL(ZZF — XN F:0.4067% JT * 0.2057% JT
R0.2518TT) c ZIEXACEEHAZE A
RBEHBABZIRE2138 (T — /N &F:
2.2687C ~ 2.80/8 Lk 2.14287T) + EXFR
RZAITEAE » KIE27.68% (ZF — /<& :
33.21% - 28.75% % 31.06%) - B #E 2 78
HFEPRRF (ZT—AF :AF  HFERDN
F) - FBHR B EIHRET.05% (ZF—"F -
6.92% * 6.92% }29.06%) K F [£ % [ i FI
#£0.68% (ZZF—/NF :097% - 0.87% &
0.94%) ° & 78 HA IR (B B i < 15 1R = &t
BEZRBIBEARRZKRERERE
ERLBHAIAE(CE—NE HFE M
FRME)BE 2 BT REBTE -
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27 RESERVES

27 &

Available-
for-sale
Capital Share-based Property financial
Share reserve  compensation  revaluation asset  Exchange Other  Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
AfHE
BARGE UROXET WEER #HBEEE
R sE (A7) e e 5 e EXEE HtEFE RBERZA A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFTHRT FET FHET THrxr TFAxT FTHEx TFExT FTER
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RE
MA—H 66,072 10,591 3,207 6,790 7,721 36,710 — 488,278 619,369
Exchange difference arising #2258 SNt & A &
on translation of foreign ~ FTEEE X =%
subsidiaries — — — — — (18,216) — — (18,216)
Fair value gains on At ENBEE
available-for-sale Z AT E M
financial assets — — — — 3,320 — — — 3,320
Release of exchange FHE-FMBRA
reserve upon T R Bk BB 4
deregistration of a
subsidiary — — — — —  (11,343) = —  (11,343)
Employee share option EEBRETE
scheme:
Proceeds from shares T8 BB AR A B
issued upon exercise BIIROEE
of options FRIE 6,319 — — — — — — — 6,319
Transfer of reserve upon W77 B AR i B
exercise of options ERGEE 1,336 — (1,336) — — — — — —
Options lapsed B K A A = = (37) = = = — 37 —
Value of employee EERBZEE
services = = 4,134 = — — — — 4134
Changes in ownership R—FEHBARZ
interests in subsidiaries BAEEERED
without change of (2 ) 4 3F M 2
control ) = = - = - = (2,022) — (2,022)
Profit for the year F N Fl — — — — - — — 80,038 80,038
Dividends paid Bk 2 = = = = = = —  (41,561)  (41,561)
At 31 March 2016 R-IE—RE
=A=t+—8 73,727 10,591 5,968 6,790 11,041 7,151 (2,022) 526,792 640,038
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27 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27 fEE(E)
Available-
for-sale
Capital Share-based  Property financial
Share reserve compensation revaluation asset Exchange Other Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve reserve  reserve reserve earnings Total
HHE
AAfEE LRHXAT HEEME HBEE
BtriaE (A B2 1 fit 4 ftifE ERfEGE HttEr RERH &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTERT TER TFET FTER TE&x TFTERX TFERT TFTERX TER
At 1 April 2016 RZZT—REF
MA—H 73,727 10,591 5,968 6,790 11,041 7151 (2,022) 526,792 640,038
Exchange difference arising 2 &8 4K /& A 7]
on translation of foreign FTE4E X £
subsidiaries — — — — —  (27,559) — —  (27,559)
Fair value loss on available- AJ i\ & 01 75 & &=
for-sale financial assets ZAFEKRZE — — — — (239) — — — (239)
Employee share option EEBRES
scheme:
Proceeds from shares AT B AR R
issued upon exercise BITRO S
of options A 8,113 — — — — — — — 8,113
Transfer of reserve upon 17 {f B AR HE B
exercise of options R 1,395 — (1,395) — — — — — —
Options lapsed B 5 2 BB AR A — — (99) — — — — 99 =
Value of employee EERBEE
services — - 1,601 - — — — — 1,601
Profit for the year F 1 7 — — — — — — — 61,745 61,745
Dividends paid BRI & — — — — — — —  (41,586) (41,586)
At 31 March 2017 R=2—£F
ER=ET—=6 83,235 10,591 6,075 6,790 10,802  (20,408) (2,022) 547,050 642,113
Note: et -

The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference between the nominal

value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of

the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange

of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in September 2002.

AEBEAREOER-_SZ-_FALAREAEH
BEABEERNRBARRBMETEBREEEMK
BHBRARAZBRARKRNEELAERIER -
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28 REVENUE 28 Wiz
The Group is principally engaged in the research and REEFEREEFEmMREME A
development, manufacture and sales of electronic products and R REHFEEER FAER
other products. Revenue from sales of goods recognised during BEYEER WS NT:

the year are as follows:

2017 2016
—¥—-tE —Z—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAT
Sales of goods BEYEERE 1,414,103 1,368,100
29 EXPENSES BY NATURE 29 HMHEDZHX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling FRAHERES DHEHEEEERAAR—K
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed RITHRERERZRAXAMAT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—F—tE =—T—R~F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAET
Cost of inventories 7B B AR 1,040,978 1,011,154
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BMEREBETE 25,932 25,554
Amortisation of land use rights o 3 {5k R A 8 1,113 1,153
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 6,265 5,710
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment HE¥ % « R E K& & 2
Y 2= (159) (121)
Operating lease rental of premises BFzaEH0ES 3,165 2,778
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ BEIRNAXZ(BREEHE)
emoluments) (Note 36) (Kt & 36) 165,301 170,489
Write-back of provision for inventory impairment 17 & Jg {& # & % [0 (1,023) (825)
Auditor’s remuneration % AT B &
— Audit services — ZERS 2,700 2,470
— Non-audit services — ERE RSB 389 555
Commission expense B < 15,657 10,436
Other expenses H S 79,270 68,938
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses 5 & Bk 78 « 73 84 & $4 & & F
and general and administrative expenses NE—BERTHREEER
R 1,339,588 1,298,291
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30 OTHER INCOME 30 HirA
2017 2016
—FE—t&E —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Government grants BT 4 B 208 1,221
Scrap sales BERIHE a1 251
Rental income e A 358 360
Others H 58 351
665 2,183
31 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 31 Hih(EBHE) Wz B8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#T FAET
Net foreign currency exchange (loss)/gain PE X (& 18), W F 58 (35) 1,969
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments $T4 &g T A 2 A FE K =H — 2,235
Net realised (loss)/gain on derivative financial MEEMT A ZER
instruments (B18) W F5 (451) 1,515
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BEAFEZABZ 2K
through profit or loss BEATEEBE (113) —
Fair value gain/(loss) on an investment property — —IEREYE 7 A FEWKZE
(E1#8) 200 (400)
Factory relocation costs (Note (a)) [ 55 % B B AN (f 27 (@) (5,585) —
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BERYERE
(Note 7) (Htat7) (7,524) —
Release of exchange reserve upon deregistration of = &5 — & Fff B A 7] B f7 b
a subsidiary (Note (b)) ME 5% 4 (B 72 (b)) — 11,343
(13,508) 16,662
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31/

32

194

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (CONTINUED) 31

Note:

(a) During the year, the Group relocated certain of its manufacturing plants
in Mainland China from Huizhou to Dongguan and incurred relocation
costs of approximately HK$5,585,000 (2016: Nil).

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2016, a subsidiary was deregistered.
The cumulative amount of the exchange reserve of this subsidiary of
HK$11,343,000, previously recognised as other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, was reclassified to the consolidated income
statement upon the deregistration.

Hith (B548) W2k - FEHEE)

Bt

(a) FR AEEBESETHEANBREREAR
MR BER ST W E A R B K A 45,585,000
BIL(ZE—RF T) -

(b) HE-Z—A"F=A=1t—HLFE ' AQ7
FH-—EMNBAR - ZHMBAREAMBERE
fth2EBAFERE 2R 2 E R FiE
25T %11,343,000 8 TRFHBENDEE
BRAEWREERF

FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 32 MEBEWARBERNAE
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ET THE T
Interest income from: RETHZEZFBWA:
— bank deposits — RITIFK 1,815 1,090
— bond investment — EHEE 430 430
— overdue interest received from customers — BEFUWE A BT B 5,530 2,041
Finance income A& WA 7,775 3,561
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEERMERX (4,832) (3,305)
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying assets B MEEBREEZLEERE
k- 253 309
Finance costs B & KA (4,579) (2,996)
Finance income — net mEW A — FEE 3,196 565
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33

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

Bermuda and British Virgin Islands income tax

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. The Company’s subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International Business
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
corporate income tax at 25% (2016: 25%) effective from
1 January 2008.

Macao taxation

Suga Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a subsidiary
established in Macao and is exempted from Macao
Complementary Tax.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

33 FIR#iEX

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HRERKERLABEMNS
B
AATBE-E=REFANRLHMASR
ERE  AARRKEBELRESEY
P 2 ) T AR 5 2 BB R B B
R AL - E R A B R
LBBFEH -

FEEANEH
BRI B BLABE16.5%
4 1 16.5%) Bt A 4 [ 1 5t AR PR
B 15 -

AN

— =

hE L EFRHFH

NEBMPFABEANH 2K BARER
25% (ZZF—7N4F 1 25%) BN ¥ BT
B BZZEENF—A—B4E™-

RMBRIE
HERMBREEEREERAFA
PRPIRZZ K EDR - b 8OR
FriSHIEH -

BERBWERMNBZMEREEN

2017 2016
—FT—tHFE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT

Current income tax: EHMEN:
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEMNEN 7,854 7,807
— Income tax outside Hong Kong — BARRINAEH 8 1,752
— Over-provision in prior years — BAFEBEEE (2,537) (740)
Deferred income tax credit (Note 23) PTG R ( i223) (1,753) (223)
3,572 8,596
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33 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(f)  The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:

33 FhR#EAX(E)
() AEBBFEH SN2 FMEHE
B BRINB RN E 2 BmeEA
FiRRE - #EmT

2017 2016
—FE—t&FE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Profit before income tax B B 15 2% B Ot A 63,615 87,907
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% %16.5% (ZZE— /N F:
(2016: 16.5%) 16.5%) Tt X5t & 10,496 14,505
Effect of different income tax rates on income & 7 35 4N & A Uk A R B T~
arising outside Hong Kong RIEHRZZE (3,383) (2,542)
Tax loss not recognised AN HE R A 18 B R 7,230 1,635
Expenses not deductible for income tax R PT 15 B 2 B X
purpose 1,168 4,390
Income not subject to income tax BAMMETISH 2B A (8,693) (8,568)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBBERE (2,537) (740)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax FRABEARERNIAESE
losses (709) (84)
Income tax expense Fr /8 % 32 i 3,572 8,596

There is no tax charge relating to components of other

comprehensive income.
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34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

3 BREF

(a) Basic (@ EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit ERERBANTIRANAGHE AR
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted EEMNBERAFASETERR 2N
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. PR EEE -
2017 2016
—F—tE =—ZT—~F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 22 &) #E & A J& (k% F
(HK$'000) (FE7T) 61,745 80,038
Weighted average number of ordinary shares © %17 & i A% 0 #E 15 B 4
in issue ('000) (F ) 279,084 276,576
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERZF GBI 22.12 28.94
(b) Diluted (b) #3F

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options granted to
employees. For the share options, a calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average market
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

BREERNTIRNRRAAEEHS
BEBREEANBRTABET
ESNE B INEF AR EIELFTH -
ARRA—BEEHEERK B
FEESR N ZBAE - SLEREM
5 BB ENEMABNRARITRE
BRECRBE2SREBNRGR
BEAZEAFECARRR R T
MEABE)BAZKMNEE - AL
FEFEZ BN EE K EBRRER
RETEMELETHRMNAKAB L
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347 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

35

198

34 BikEME)

(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) HEE(E)
2017 2016
—Eg—tE —ZZ—xF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ZNA &) #E & A J& (k% T
(HK$'000) (FA&T) 61,745 80,038
Weighted average number of ordinary shares © %17 & 38 % 0 #E 15 B 4
in issue ('000) (F &) 279,084 276,576
Adjustments for share options ('000) BB R #E A (T 1) 1,063 471
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5 % ##58 & F| = & 3@ % o0 4
for diluted earnings per share ("000) Y15 B Eh (F R%) 280,147 277,047
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREBAF W) 22.04 28.89
DIVIDENDS 35 8

Dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2017 were
HK$19,407,000 (HK7.0 cents per share) and HK$22,179,000
(HK8.0 cents per share), respectively. A dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2017 of HK8.0 cents per share, totalling
HK$22,511,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting
on 14 August 2017. These financial statements do not reflect
this dividend payable.

HE_ZT—+t&ZA=Z+—RHLEEFEEEM
% 2.5 Bl 19,407,000 7t (& AZ7.078 1l
$.22,179,000/8 7T (& % 8.0 1lll) - R =
T—+tFNATHENBRRRAFAS LE
FEREE-_T—tHF=A=1+—HILF
ERR S EK8.081l - &£ 422,511,000
I e ZEM SRR I E R ZENRK

B o
o

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FAET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents Bk HEIE B L @70
(2016: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share BA(ZZE—RF 7.0
i) 19,407 19,392
Final dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 cents ¥R AR IR B AR E B 8.0
(2016: HK8.0 cents) per ordinary share BA(ZZE—7NF : 8.0
i) 22,511 22,177
41,918 41,569
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CEE R

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

36 EIRIFAX(BEEENE)

2017 2016

—F—tFE =—ZZT—~F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Wages and salaries ITERF® 142,441 151,743

Bonus TEAT 8,800 4,260

Staff welfare ETREA 5,444 5,192

Share-based compensation expenses R 13 1 7R 3 B B 2 1,601 4,134

Unutilised annual leave REEWE R 84 35
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIS KA — FEREMHE K

it 6,931 5,125

165,301 170,489

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2016: two)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in Note 37. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2016: three)

(a) ABEREHFMAL

RAFE  AEBRIEASEHMAL
BR=2CT-XR"F WRAEX "
BEZHMSERKEI7RMI - FR
ENESRMEB(ZE—RF :=ZR)A

individuals during the year are as follows: TzMEmT:
2017 2016
“—E—tE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EELKEVEA 4,761 5,417
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ROKE 5T B4 50 128 181
4,889 5,598
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" 36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 36 EIRFMFAX(BREEEME)E)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) AEmEHMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FATEE:

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—F—tE =—ZZT—~F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T T
Emolument bands B & %8 &
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T — 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,000/% 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T £3,000,000/%8 7T 1 1
2 3
(b) Senior management’s emoluments by band () REBITHEREEAS
N &
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding the five NFEATHENSREEAB(TE
highest paid individuals) fell within the following bands: BRRAEGESTMADIZ2ME :
Number of individuals
AB
2017 2016
—F—tE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Emolument bands i & %5 [
Nil-HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 2 1
3 3
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
Directors and chief executive’s emoluments
The emoluments of every director and the chief executive

(a)

is set out below:

37

ESEMERER

(a) EFERITHASNE

REERTRABZHEHIIWT :

Employer’s
contribution

to retirement

Salaries and Share-based  Discretionary benefit
Fees allowance compensation bonuses scheme Total
BAERE
e FHEREE RO GTREHN R4l BEHR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET FHET
For the year ended BE-FT—t#
31 March 2017: =A=+-—H
LLEE:
Executive directors: BITES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman, REFEL(EE

Chief Executive Officer) TE A ) 2,806 1,620 — 2,800 443 7,669
Mr. Ma Fung On BERELE

(Deputy Chairman) (&%) 2,008 — 218 300 100 2,626
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk SRSt 1,196 = 436 500 60 2,192
Non-executive director: FRTES:

Mr. Lee Kam Hung FREEE 180 — — - - 180
Independent non-executive BIAFHTES:

directors:
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHEE 240 — — — — 240
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRARFEE 216 - - - — 216
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RaMEL 216 - 65 - — 281
For the year ended BHE-_Z—RF

31 March 2016: =A=+—H

IEEE

Executive directors: BITES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman, REEBL(EE

Chief Executive Officer) TR A8 #) — 4,149 — 4,260 415 8,824
Mr. Ma Fung On BERELE

(Deputy Chairman) (B E ) — 1,926 — — 9% 2,022
Dr Ng Man Cheuk (Note (a)) RREBL

(K&t (a) — 1,034 — — 52 1,086
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung THMUEELE 180 — — — — 180
Independent non-executive BUAERTEE:
directors:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua & & 52 # %

(Note (b)) (B7:# b)) 120 — — _ _ 120
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven REHEE 228 — — — — 228
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRARFE 216 — — — — 216
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan R g L 216 — — — — 216
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

31

202

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Notes:
(a) Appointed on 1 May 2015.

(b) Resigned on 1 October 2015.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the retirement benefits was paid or receivable by
directors during the year (2016: Nil).

None of the termination benefits was paid by or receivable
from the company, the subsidiary undertaking nor the
controlling shareholders to the directors during the year
(2016: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Nil).
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EEAGRED(E)
(a) EERTHASIWE ()
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(b)

(c)

(a) R-ZE-—hSEAH-—HEZE

) R-B-HE+A-ABE
EFEERAENRERER

FA BMBEESCHREUENKRSE
MZB—RF:F)-

R EEAT  HBATRLR
BRMESRHEEA LD R IE
JIGE ST S R

FE=ZHF X RUEERRE
ZRE

BE-FT—tF=A=t—HL#F
B ARRYEAEAESFXN
RUEBEERBINB/CT—AF:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other

(e)

dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2017, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2016:
Nil).

37

ESMERER(E)

(d)

(e)

ARAUEE BEREHOR
EHEZAERER SRR
EZHEBBEATRAZEHE
R EEREAMRZZEH
R-F—+&#=A=+—H8 HEs
EHES mANESERNEE
BEABBREANESEME
MEBBAZHAZER  EER
REMRDRHFER (ZT—AF:
) o

BEERXS REMEHZ
EXER
RERLENEMERE - HEEFE
AAFERI NS AFRAEENE
R B A (T B 2 R )
MBAQRAEBEBZIEARS
ZHRAN(CT—RF ®)

EEEBEEERAT 2016174% | 203



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SR B

38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 38 HEXBEEZERE
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from FRHEMNEBRLKEEBRELER @ HRW
operations as follows: N

2017 2016
—E—tEFE —ZT—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Profit for the year F N 60,043 79,311
Adjustments for: R
— Income tax expense — e HEX 3,572 8,596
— Finance income — BEWA (7,775) (3,561)
— Finance cost — BE KA 4,579 2,996
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — % - BELXETE 25,932 25,554
— Impairment of property, plant and equipment — #% « BB K R &R E 7,524 —
— Amortisation of land use rights — {5 PR R g 1,113 1,153
— Amortisation of intangible assets — EREEHE 6,265 5,710
— Gain on disposals of property, — LEME BERKZME
plant and equipment Z W = (159) (121)
— Fair value loss on financial assets carried at — BAFETEAERZ
fair value through profit or loss WBEEATEER 113 —
— Share-based compensation expenses — B 5 SR B R 2 1,601 4,134
— Fair value gain on derivative financial — TEeMIAZAFE
instruments g %5 — (2,235)
— Net realised loss on derivative financial — PTEMBE I AZEEA
instruments ekt 451 —
— Fair value (gain)/loss on an investment — —REEME L RAFE
property (W), &8 (200) 400
— Share of losses of associates — DB E AREE 1,253 1,312
— Release of exchange reserve upon — R — R B B R R By R
deregistration of a subsidiary B P& 5 55 15 — (11,343)
— Write-back of provision for inventory — FERERERD
impairment (1,023) (825)
103,289 111,081
Changes in working capital: LEESED:
— Inventories — =5 (27,765) 26,282
— Trade and other receivables — EWE SRR E A E
WK IR (31,375) (1,916)
— Increase in amount due from an associate — ER—EEE A
IR A — (431)
— Trade and other payables — BB SRR & H A &
KA 63,866 4,033
Cash generated from operations KEXBELE RS 108,015 139,049

204 ‘ SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2016/17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 95 45 3 B &

38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 38 EREBELEZIRLS(E)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment LEME BERSEBEZAEBRIERRE:
comprise:

2017 2016

—T—tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Net book value (Note 7) AREFE M 27) 46 15
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment HE¥% - BERRE 2

Y &5 159 121

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE MERZBHEZ

equipment Fr 18 5018 205 136
39 COMMITMENTS 39 JKiE
(i) Operating lease commitments (i) HEZFHLRE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had future aggregate RZZBE—tEF=A=+—8 A&KH
minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises REEMERBETATRELEALD
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: RREMzERSBEHOT :
2017 2016
—F—-tE Z—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Not later than one year —F A 2,839 2,709
Later than one year and not later than five —F#EEBREFR
years 1,252 1,109
Later than five years hE# 535 —
4,626 3,818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SR B

39

40

206

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 39 XiE(8E)
(ii) Capital commitments (i) BHERKIE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had the following capital RZEBE—tF=ZA=1+—H ~EE
commitments: BTHEREE:
2017 2016
—¥—-tE —Z—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: SHESRER S 3
— Property, plant and equipment — - BERKZE 3,053 5,412
— Investment in an associate — R—HEBE A FRE 2,000 —
5,053 5,412

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% to 10% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 7% to 12% of the basic salaries of its
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao, the Group
has arranged its Macao employees to join the government
provident fund scheme (the “Macao Scheme”). The Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and
MOP15, respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the monthly
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 45 R B

40 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

41

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of the
Group's contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes
were approximately HK$6,931,000 (2016: HK$5,125,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2017, 39.15% (2016: 39.69%) of the total
issued shares of the Company is owned by Superior View Inc., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and 16.55%
(2016: 16.36%) of the total issued shares of the Company is
owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling parties of the
Group are Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a director of the Company, and Ms.
Lee Wai Fun, wife of Dr. Ng Chi Ho, respectively.

(a) Transaction with related parties
In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during the year,
the Group has the following related party transactions:

40

41

BEEEKERNE)
BE-_ZT—+H=A=+—HILFE &
SEME EMRARSFTEEL < HRBTEL
46,931,000/ 7T (=& — X 4 : 5,125,000
BIL) °

FRAEANLTXS
RZE—tF=A=+—H  ARRBEEIT
A& 17 4858 2 39.15% (ZZF— 7<% : 39.69%)
DHERBRZESTMK Y 2 A A
Superior View Inc#EB - MARFRIE TR
P #8%E 216.55% (ZF—/X%F : 16.36%) /3
R 7T 2 &8 R 22 B¥ S a5 3z 2 22 A Billion
Linkage Limited#E A& 7N & B & AR E AR A
THRAARRRIEZREZRELTRETRSR
ZEH(RERELTZ2EF) -

(a) HBMAEANLIXS
RESNEHHRANS B A&
BRENGETTIBEBEALR

5
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAE T
Sales of electronic products to a minority m— BB ARz > HRE
shareholder of a subsidiary HEETE M 4,792 6,796

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s
business and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

EERA  LRXBAALEES
$T5 B UE S EABHE 2 R
17 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Key management compensation

41 FEHEANLRXS(E)
(b) = EEE R

The aggregate remuneration of key personnel FTEERBEABCHFMAERER

management, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid employees, as

NARBEERET
TRIE (70 MY aE36 K% MY sE374% B8) - &

RRFHEEZ

disclosed in Note 36 and 37, is as follows: F T
2017 2016
—E—tE =T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT

Salaries and other short-term employee FeREMEBEESRFT

benefits 19,366 18,219
Post-employment benefits BfE B 12 48 A 870 810
20,236 19,029

(c) Year-end balances with related parties (i)

(c) HBEMEANTZELREERI)

2017 2016

—T—tE —ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Amount due from an associate (i) Jr& e — ] Bt 4 2 =) 3 () 3,250 431

Amounts due to minority shareholders of BB AR 2 LR

subsidiaries KIE 1,422 2,016

(i): The balances were unsecured, repayable on demand and interest (i) E EEHAREER REREERR

free, and are included in other payables and other receivables,

respectively.

(ii): The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in Note (i)

12.

Fﬁﬂ&l%’lﬁ ©

WE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT %5 3 R M o

42 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 42 ARSIz EEBRBRREHES

COMPANY )
Balance sheet of the Company KATIZEEERER
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RF
=A=+-8 =ZA=+--H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M & FET FEIT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Deferred income tax assets BEFBREE 1,002 —
Interests in subsidiaries SN £ 68,166 67,371
I 69168 67,371
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables JEWE Z IR R K
H b i W R IE 258 354
Income tax recoverable ar U [ T 1S 1 528 160
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B 2 | 5 IE 165,392 140,230
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEEY 1,900 437
S 168,078 141,181
Total assets BEHE 237,246 208,552
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ERE 5 R K&
H b & {4 5/ 18 3,057 2,667
Total liabilities aex®sE 0 3057 2,667
Equity HEx
Equity attributable to owners of the 2NN R DN R
Company
Share capital [N 28,100 27,712
Other reserves Hib B ©) 154,182 144,567
Retained earnings REBEF (a) 51,907 33,606
Total equity e 234,189 205,885
Total equity and liabilities EzREEAH 237,246 208,552
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board RARBEEBBERER-ZZE—LtF A=
of Directors on 29 June 2017 and was signed on its behalf. THhBEEZEESHE  THATINESFREK
BE o
Ng Chi Ho Ma Fung On
REXE BE®
Director Director
EE EZE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

427 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

210

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note (a) reserve movement of the Company

8 (&)
ME@EFLATHEEEH

Share-based

42 FABZEEBRRRHAESR

Share Contributed compensation Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
% 53 44 =

& 4 its (B BN F R BEEE ®REEN &at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FHET FHET FHET FHIT

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—AEMA—H 66,072 64,872 3,207 44,284 178,435

Employee share option scheme: EEBERES:

Proceeds from shares issued upon TEBREREITRMZ

exercise of options Frig 1A 6,319 — — — 6,319
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of 7T B A% 4 b5 88 18 (% 1

options 1,336 — (1,336) — —

Options lapsed EE Y e — — (37) 37 —

Value of employee services BERBZEE — — 4,134 — 4,134

Profit for the year F W5 — — — 30,846 30,846

Dividends paid 2R R & — — — (41,561) (41,561)

At 31 March 2016 N=ZF—7"E=A=+—8H 73,727 64,872 5,968 33,606 178,173

At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—AEmMA—H 73,727 64,872 5,968 33,606 178,173

Employee share option scheme: EEBERES:

Proceeds from shares issued upon TEBREREITRMNZ

exercise of options Fr 1§ 308 8,113 — — — 8,113
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of 1713 BE AR A B 88 1 (E 1

options 1,395 — (1,395) — —

Options lapsed EE Y e — — (99) 99 —

Value of employee services BERBZEE = — 1,601 — 1,601

Profit for the year F W5 — — — 59,788 59,788

Dividends paid 2R iR & — — — (41,586) (41,586)

At 31 March 2017 N=F—t&#=HA=+—8H 83,235 64,872 6,075 51,907 206,089
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42

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note (a) reserve movement of the Company (Continued)
Note:

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal amount of
shares issued and the book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries

acquired in return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due,
or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

42

FABZEBEERRRHESE
8 (&)
Bt & (a) & 22 B] i 4 2 8 (48)

it -

BN B RS 1E R R H P 3% 77 AR 47 2 T (B £ P UK BB B
BRAEAMERFEEREEIEZR -

BREABRE-NN-FREE  BARRKASIK TR
ROMEAZUATHREMR  AMEAABRBREIRSK
AR B RAEH DK - ) ARE B AR SR
BREZEERIPEE NMEEEZTERER
REEE EEBHTERARBKOGEZEM BT
BELHEEIIK -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hAFEMBME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE—F—+#=H=—+—F1 F&

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets ZA&EEBEAEGRFEZGEEBEARES
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out ZEKBEMEEH 0T :

" below:
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2= ZT-QNF ZZT-1F ZT-~F ZB-t#H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TAL TAEL THEL FTHEL FTHET
Consolidated results GRYLE
Revenue U 5 1107,488 1,244,828 1,341,924 1,368,100 1,414,103
Operating profit mER T 81,806 90,661 178,144 88,654 61,672
Profit before income tax BR F7 15 % A % A 82,817 91,597 175,712 87,907 63,615
Income tax expense PER R % (5,364) (10,688) (5,698) (8,596) (3,572)
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company ZX72 & B B A FE 15 3% 77,841 81,487 170,406 80,038 61,745
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E—=f —T-QNF —ZT-1F —T-xF ZB-t#H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL TEL TEL FHET
Consolidated assets and liabilities GREERER
Land use rights Tk A 60,798 58,973 55,528 53,291 50,484
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREHE 117,366 200,943 257,317 263,236 276,081
Investment property REME — — 10,100 10,000 10,200
Intangible assets BEAE 21,046 15,892 12,372 7,251 986
Goodwill GES 3,949 3,949 3,949 3,949 3,949
Interests in associates R—HEBE AR ER 1,868 1,702 — 3,876 3,804
Amount due from an associate JE U — B & R Rl B 267 267 — — =
Long-term loan receivables REEHEWZE 16,575 = = =
Deferred income tax assets ERMEHEE 3,524 2,811 762 323 1,086
Available-for-sale financial asset EHENKEE 4,323 7,547 13,358 16,678 16,439
Bonds investments — long term BHEHRE — RH 7,711 7,711 7,711 7711 7,711
Financial assets at fair value through profit or KA F(ELABE 2B
loss — long term BE — &H 1,279 — — — 4,838
Other non-current receivables HinIEmE BRI 3,875 852 1,658 4,118 —
Current assets MEBEE 513,543 540,816 586,673 610,815 662,137
Current liabilities mEAE (174,534)  (270,554)  (289,702)  (301,542)  (360,112)
Net current assets MEBEEFE 339,009 270,262 296,971 309,273 302,025
Total assets less current liabilities BEELEANDER 581,590 570,909 659,726 679,706 677,603
Long term borrowings REBEE (85,532) (47,731) (12,405) (10,932) (6,678)
Other non-current liabilities HidEneatE (17,595) = = = =
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEE (5,759) (4,649) (2,105) (1,443) (453)
Total equity Bmias 472,704 518,529 645,216 667,331 670,472
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